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.(gavel). . . Council's Committee on Budget and Finance will come to
CHAIR HOKAMA:
order. Let the record show, present this morning are Mr. Kane, Mr. Arakawa, Mr.
Carroll, Ms. Johnson, Mr. Molina, Mr. Nishiki, and Ms. Tavares. Excused is Mr.
Kawano. Members, we have three people. . .are wishing to testify this morning. At this
time, the Chair will call up Mr. Colin Hanlon to present your testimony. Seeing none.
Next, we'll go to Kelly Pearson for testimony. Kelly.

. . .BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY.. .
MS. PEARSON: Good morning. Obviously, I'm not Colin. And I just want to say good
morning, Committee Chair Hokama, and Council Members. I stand before you this
morning to ask for your support in the expansion of the Central Maui Youth Center
project proposed in the Mayor's budget. I first want to thank all of you for meeting with
us during the last month to update you on our newly. . .organized program, the Boys
and Girls Clubs of Maui, and then I also thank those of you who met with us the second
time to talk about this project. So, instead of repeating what we had discussed in the
meetings, I just wanted to touch up on certain points. Since we started the program in
'97. . .the Boys and Girls Club of Maui, formerly known as Central Maui Youth Center,
has doubled in membership. We have many new programs to offer and it is 100
percent tobacco, alcohol, drug, and bully free. And. . .um. . .accord...,. . .there are many
new needs that this new clubhouse in Central will fulfill; the space to operate the many
new Boys and Girls Club programs; the space to accommodate the increasing number
of youth members; the need for Central--how can I say it?--resource center or one
location where if parents and youths need any kind of help they can call. And if we
cannot provide it with our Boys and Girls Club programs then at least we can give 'em
the number to the agency that can help them. And lastly, the need for lodging facilities
for incoming County groups or teams. Another question that I know that comes to your
minds is how is our program different from others or how do, how does it compare to
other organizations? I think, the biggest difference between the Boys and Girls Club of
Maui and other organizations is that the only re..., requirement that has to be fulfilled for
a youth to become member or to enjoy the benefits of the program is that they need to
be between the ages of 9 and 17. That's it. Doesn't matter what race. . .what religion;
what culture; what socio-economic background; what intelligence or academic level;
what, what their family background or make up is, as long as they're between 9 and 17,
they're in. My next point of emphasis is that fact that we--and you have. . .a bunch of
papers in front of you and those are some letters from some of the organizations and
agencies who have used the facility. And just to name a few: the Lanai Ba...,
Menehune Basketball Team, Special Olympics, Multiple Sclerosis, The Juvenile
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Diabetes Foundation, The Institute for Family Enrichment, Hula Bowl, and Girl Scouts.
Other organizations: Central Maui Boxing Club; Kihei, lao and Baldwin schools; MEO
Headstart. So, these are just a few of the organizations that have used the facility. So,
we, you know, just because we run Boys and Girls Club programs out of it that doesn't
mean that we don't loan the facility out to others. And as long as, as it's non-profit or for
the kids and if it helps the community; we allow them in. So in concle.., concluding, I
just want to let you know that we are not asking you to support a project. . .or to support
electrical and plumbing work or nor are we asking you to pay for wooden or steel walls.
But what we are asking you to pay for is for a place where the community comes
together to tell our kids that we care about 'em, to tell 'em that we love 'em, to protect
`ern and to tell 'em that we have expectations of them and we won't let them fail. So,
remember you're not just building a build--a facility--you're build, you're building children
that will grow up and hopefully have an impact on our society just like you. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: You forgot to tell us your name.
MS. PEARSON: Oh, I'm sorry. Kelly Pearson, and I'm actually the Director of Operations of
Boys and Girls Club of Maui and also the Unit Director of the Central Club.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Kelly. Questions for Kelly? Mr. Nishiki.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Real short. Urn. . .do you have problems with transporting the
kids to and from? Has it been a problem where kids may want to come and participate
but there's no transportation?
MS. PEARSON: No, it hasn't.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: The kids may want to. . .need a ride home and there's no
transportation?
MS. PEARSON: No. Thanks to MEO Youth Transportation; they provide transportation from I
would say,. . .every school in Central except Waihee, I think, because there's a problem
with the, the bussing; all the buses coming in that crowded area. But, every Central
school there's a bus, except Baldwin, they can walk across the street and there's also
buses that bring down the kids from Makawao, from Kihei, after school. During the
summer, spring breaks, whenever there's no school, the bus system accommodates us
and, you know, adjusts the sch..., the schedule and times. So, the buses actually go to
the housing areas; Luana Gardens, Hawaiian Homes, Waiehu Terrace, and pick up the
kids, bring 'em; pick up the kids from the Center, from the clubhouse, and take 'em
home.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Thank you.
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MS. PEARSON: You're welcome.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you. Any other questions for Ms. Pearson? Yes,
Mr. Arakawa.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Kelly, just a little bit of a follow up to that. How has the
service been from MEO. . .for that bus service? Do you like that, have they been really
good for you or has there been problems?
MS. PEARSON: No, it's, it's been good and when we do have problems we, we do
communicate a lot with, with them. If they have problems with the kids, they're also
invited to call us and we can call. . .parents. Parents usually have issues as far as, you
know, when the kids get on but it's, it's, it's been really good. And it helps us--we
actually lose kids, you know, because they either suppose to be on the bus, they not on
the bus but we can easily call MEO. And between the Youth Centers or Boys and Girls
Clubs, we communicate and we say, have you seen so and so, and then you find out
they right outside the door. But, you know, so the communication is really good.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Okay. Thank you.
MS. PEARSON: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you. Any other questions?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Hold on.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Nishiki.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: You say good things, what about bad things?
MS. PEARSON: As far as the program or as far as the transportation?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Programs, needs or whatever.
MS. PEARSON: Oh, no bad things. No, no. Urn. . .there's a lot of challenges as far as the
program, we always--everyday, our everyday challenge is trying to keep. . .trying to
keep the kids not bored and, obviously, kids get bored really fast. You know, what's
good this month is out of fashion next month and we gotta come out with new and
creative programs. As far as new and creative programs. . .um. . .Boys and Girls Clubs
give us the opportunity to train our staff. So, we have staff going to trainings and people
coming over from the national headquarters in Atlanta; coming down to train us on
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newer programs. So, we're trying to--and Boys and Girls Clubs are so innovated that
the programs--the mission is still the same; keep the kids away from tobacco, alcohol,
and drugs. But obviously, what used to work before when we grew up which is a lecture
and a film showing a person crashing after drinking, does not work today. So, they
gotta come up with alternative activities and that's what we do and that's, I think, is the
biggest challenge. Other than that the kids are happy, parents are happy and it's, it has
been increasing in membership.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: When, when you talk about doubled. What are you talk, what
are you talking about in numbers?
MS. PEARSON: Urn. . .in '97, we finished off the year and we had just taken over Central
Maui Youth Center. So, we finished off the year with 212 members. We're ending the
third quarter this month and I have 302 members; this is registered members now.
There's also kids who come in and out and don't get paper signed but these are, the
302 are actually the ones that bring 'em in signed by mom and dad, that they are a
member of the club. And so, we, our goal for this year is 400 which, like I said, in '97 it
was about 212. So, it's doubled, it's increasing.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Thank you.
MS. PEARSON: You're welcome.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you. Anyone else? Seeing none. Thank you, Kelly.
MS. PEARSON: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, we'll bring up Colin, at this time, Hanlon. State your name for the
record and. . .give us your testimony, please.
MR. HANLON: Committee Chair Hokama, Council Members. Thank you for taking this time.
My name is Colin Hanlon, I'm the Executive Director with the Boys and Girls Club of
Maui. I'm here to testify on behalf of the CIP budget item for a extension for the building
for Central. Urn. . .just a quick history. We did take over the building in 1997, with the,
on the request of the County, and we have taken that program and really grown it into a,
a real safe place to be for the kids. . .and a real popular place. And we feel that the
potential is far greater than the 400 we're gonna end up the year, this year. . .in the
future. Kelly. . .is real humble but she's done some great outreach to Happy Valley and
to Harbor Lights and such and we feel that the building is one thing that's, that's slightly
holding us back in, in growing the, the program right now. When we did take it over, we
did some renovations to the building with the help of a company called Ingram Micro
through Mary Charles and Associates and they also donated some money to us as well.
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And we feel that that, that sustained us in the beginning of the growth but. . .that is just
one of the aspects that I feel is holding us. . .slightly back from growing that
membership to even higher. Our goal really. . .is hopefully, someday, to serve about 10
percent of the, the, the youth that go to the school systems; ten percent of the school
systems, and that's a real, that's a, that's a large number and it's not gonna be done in
a facility of that size. Right now, we're doing 81 youth per day at Central. And. . .the
other, the other aspect of this, of this building, that I really feel is, is real worthy to talk
about is the dorm setting where the athletes from traveling communities are gonna be
able to, to have a setting to, to be in. I feel that it's shameful for this County to be, to be
housing their, their, their student athletes on the floors of gyms and. . .and in locker
rooms. I mean, it's just, it's, it's real shameful, I think that we deserve better for our kids
here in Maui County. And honestly, I feel that the kids here deserve the best and that's
why we're, we're coming with an aggressive item like this in the budget and asking for it
because the kids at Central and the kids of the community do deserve the best. And
that's it.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you. Any questions for Colin? Mr. Nishiki.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: You, you mentioned it's embarrassing to house kids in, in these
kinds of situations. What has our hotels done to--is it because they can't afford to put
'em in hotels or room with visiting teams or whatever? Is, is there any kind of
coordination there being done?
MR. HANLON: I, I'm not sure about why it's happe..., happening, Wayne, and somewhatCOUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay. That's fine.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Any other questions for Mr. Hanlon? Seeing none. Thank you very
much, Colin. Last person this morning is Kauokalani Moikeha.
MR. MOIKEHA: Council Chair, Council Members.
Good morning.
My name is
Kauokalani Moikeha and I'm the Board President for the Boys and Girls Club of Maui. I
wanted to stand before you, at this time, and to basically express my support for this
line item. It's an item that we feel is needed in the community; will be well received and
it will be well utilized. Now, excuse me, this is not to say that we're not grateful for the
things that we have received in the past, we are, we are very grateful for the things,
which we have received from the County. We believe, we have made good use of
those items and have been able to share those things with the community at large.
Now, we do hope, at this time, that with this facility we'd be able to extend our reach
within the community, to reach a broader spectrum of children and reach a broader
spectrum of people across the community, County-wide. Kelly has testified earlier
that. . .we have different groups that uti..., that utilize the building throughout the year.
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Now, these are groups that come in annually. They come in for different meetings, for
different events. They come to the Center, they make use of the place. We try to
accommodate them as best as we can. The things they ask for we do our best to
accommodate. We've made great strides in doing that. We have been able to reach
out to a lot of different community organizations. People have come to us and asked us
for assistance. We have tried to make ourselves as available as possible within the
parameters and guidelines that the County provides and within the guidelines and
structures that we have as an organization. Couple of things, being, we don't want
people coming and trashing the place. We want them to come in and think, you know,
it's okay for them to go ahead and leave lights on. We don't want them to come in and
think that's it's alright for them to leave the water running. No. We do make sure that
the place is properly cared for and we want to make sure that your money, our money,
as taxpayers, and that our responsibility to you as the Council Members, we do meet
that responsibility. We do understand, however, that there is a greater need in the
County, a great need in the Central area. One of the things we have done as part of
Boys and Girls Club of Maui, and we have done before we became Boys and Girls
Club, as Central Maui Youth Center, was doing outreach into the other communities
within the Central Maui area; Wailuku, Kahului. When we look at sports; organized
sports, as a way and a tool for a couple of things; educating children, keeping them
interested. When we look at education of our kids, now, it's important that they learn
the three Rs. That is important. But, it's also important that their life skills also be
expanded and that's what this community, this community center is, essentially, what it
would be a youth center. But a clubhouse for boys and girls club can provide. . .an
extension in a place for these kids to learn life skills, in a setting that's basically safe and
that's what we would like to provide. Now, one of the things we are concerned about,
excuse me, is that. . .we want to be able to reach more kids. We definitely do. Not to
say that we can't, but there's only so much we can do with the facility at which we have,
which is why we believe we need the newer building. Now, if we don't get the new
building, we are still gonna do our operation as we do, as we see best, to try and reach
as many kids as we can. To try and accomplish our mission as best as we can, to
reach out to those kids. Now, not every child is an athlete, not every child is a, is a
straight "A" student but those kids also deserve a little bit of encouragement as well and
that's what we can provide. Organized sports is important. . .but being a part of
something where there's organized sports or not but being part of club, being a part of a
place where the kids can go and feel comfortable where they can belong. That's what
we believe this facility can provide and that's what we would like to help provide for
them. But, we do believe that this would be the best avenue for us, to reach, not just
the kids of the Central Maui area but also to provide a community of resource for the
County as a whole. And, this is what we would like to have in your consideration for this
project and we would appreciate that very much. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Mr. Moikeha. Questions? Ms. Johnson.
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COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes, Kauokalani, thanks for coming today. I just want to find
out that if for some reason because the needs in this community--and you've heard the
cry for infrastructure and a lot of the other issues that are coming before us. Have you
considered the possibility of asking the Department of Education, Hawaii Tourism
Authority, or the National Boys and Girls Club; if we can't provide the funding this year,
have you considered approaching them to help on a collaborative basis fund the
construction?
MR. MOIKEHA: Couple of things that we have looked at and we are examining, at this time, is
lining up basically our goals and objectives in ways of raising funds for all of our
facilities, not just the central one. And that would entitle, basically, approaching the
corporate sponsors which bas..., would help out Boys and Girls Club out, nationally.
Now, there are quite a few corporations here on the island which participate as parent
companies on the mainland with the national organization. But, because there was no
Boys and Girls Club here on Maui, their funds were not being utilized here, they were
being sent to the mainland. . .or being dispersed to other charitable organizations. One
good example of that would be Sports Authority. Sports Authority is a big promoter and
supporter of Boys and Girls Club across the country but it wasn't until recently that they
found out that there was a Boys and Girls Club here that they can support, as well.
Another would be Outback Steak House, which is a major supporter of fundraising
across the country for Boys and Girls Club of America. That's another company that
has expressed interest in helping us meet our financial goals to look at new buildings; to
maintain those buildings; to help pay for the programs for the children, and that's one of
the things we're aggressively seeking after. As for the DOE, that's a separate issue
altogether, and we haven't really approached that. . .not to say we're not going to
approach that but we're looking at ways that we can approach that. We would like to
examine each and every avenue that is available and we would like to aggressively
pursue those things. But, our concern is we don't want to pursue something in a
direction that may not be appropriate for that funding source. And that's where, I think,
we need to come for, to you folks for advice; we need to check with the Mayor for
advice on that; we need to talk to our Legislators in Honolulu about that as well. That's
not to say we aren't, it's just that we would need support in that as well. That's
something we would like to pursue.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Thanks so much, Kauokalani, and I know that Members on
this Council will do whatever we can to help support those efforts. And as Mr. Nishiki
said, too, sometimes, if you can approach the hotel industry maybe we can, we can
work out some kinds of arrangements where we could at least either get funding or
have an opportunity to ask them for their assistance when the teams do come to visit.
So, we rule out nothing. And I thank you so much for your efforts.
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MR. MOIKEHA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Appreciate it.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Any other questions?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Chairman.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Nishiki.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: We're gonna have discussion on this building and, and, and
Youth Center as a whole?
CHAIR HOKAMA: That is part of the CIP projects listed.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes. Okay. Any other questions? Seeing none. Thank you very much,
Mr. Moikeha, for coming this morning.
. . .END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY.. .
CHAIR HOKAMA: Members, this is a 1.75 million dollar project being proposed by the Mayor
and he is, the plan is for a bond request. It's in the back of the. . .program. . .proposal.
Okay, Members, at this time, Ms. Wakamatsu will be presenting the. . .budget request
for the Office of the Clerk. . . .(Pause). . . Diane, you need set up time or anything?
No. You're, you're, you're pretty set? Okay.
OFFICE OF THE COUNTY CLERK

MS. WAKAMATSU: Good morning, Chair Hokama, and Council Members. Before you, as
you all have, is the budget for the Office of the County Clerk. I would just like to
mention that there has been a change from the current fiscal year in the appropriated
amount for the Clerk Typist III. Essentially, these are. . .temporary minute transcribers
that we have hired and in the current fiscal year, they were appropriated
under. . .Elections as Clerk Typist III. And for the next fiscal year which is 2002, they
have come under the fulltime workers, although; they are still temporary they are placed
in that category and the appropriated requested amount for these employees is being
requested for 2002. Although there were four positions that were established, we
currently have three filled at the current time. So, there is one position that is not filled

9

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui
March 28, 2001

and that is why there is no appropriation made for that position. If you notice, there are
three that have appropriated amounts and one that does not have any.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, Members, that's 6-2 under Details, on the, on the detail portion, 6-2.
MS. WAKAMATSU: The other change that I wanted to inform you of. . .falls, again, under the
details and it deals with Election. In the past, under Printing and Binding, which
essentially were the cost of the ballots for the elections, there was 100,151 and that has
been moved to the 2002 Fiscal Year, under Professional Services with $100,000
appropriation. And my understanding is that that move, essentially, was made because
in the past. . .we would have to pay for the printing cost of the ballot. And now, with
election system and software being a full service, their contract includes ballot printing,
as well as, providing for the Central and Precinct Counters. And 50 percent of Maui's
share of the contract for the 2002 election would be due by June 20 th , 2002, with the
remaining 50 percent to be paid by November 30 th , 2002. So, we would be coming in
the next fiscal year to ask for that payment. . . .(Pause). . . And the
final. . .appropriation that I wanted to mention was under Budget Expen..., Expenditures
for the Elections, for the current fiscal year, there is 75,000 in there. We are in the
process of finalizing what is to be the prorated cost that the County of Maui needs to
pay the State. When elections are conducted, there's a certain amount that the County
pays for and a certain amount that the State pays for. And by statute, they do a
proration based on four factors: the first, would be the cost that is absorbed strictly by
the County; the second, would be the cost that is absorbed strictly by the State; the
third, would be the cost that is absorbed half between the State and the County and the
fourth element, would be the cost absorbed between the State and all four of the
Counties on a prorated basis. Aside from that, there is no change in the permanent
staff personnel. . .for the office.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Anything else, Ms. Wakamatsu?
MS. WAKAMATSU: Uh. . .no that. . .concludes my presentation of the office budget.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you very much. Members, we'll open it up and we'll start Mr. Kane,
this morning. Thank you. Mr. Arakawa?
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Just one question. You have. . .four positions but you're
only filling three and budgeting for three. Do you have any intent of filling the fourth
position this year?
MS. WAKAMATSU: Councilmember Arakawa, that fourth position being filled, I would. . .say,
would be contingent upon. . .the workload that's currently being needed to be completed
by the Office of Council Services, Committee Division. What it is, is we established the
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positions under the Office of County Clerk and from the initiation of the program, which
was in November of 1999, we had hired originally two temporary transcribers. And we
had one working for us the whole year and another working for us for a half-year and
then we hired someone else for a six-month period, oh, excuse me, a three-month
period. And that in and of itself, for our Division, pretty much caught up with our
backlog. So, the temporary clerk typist positions that we have currently under our office
now, at the present time, is really working on the Council Committee minutes backlog.
So, whether or not they need an additional body, I would say would be determined by
the services that needs to be done in that particular division.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Then, Mr. Chairman, I would recommend that we talk to
Council Service and see if they actually are gonna try and need a body in that position.
If they do, we need to put the appropriate funding to it. If they don't need a body then
we don't have to put any additional funding to it but if we're gonna try and activate it, we
need to have money there to do it. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Arakawa. Mr. Carroll? Thank you. Ms. Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: No, I really don't have any question.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Mr. Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: None.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Mr. Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah, Diane, in regards to. . .these. . .personnel that are
catching up with minutes. Where, where are we and. . .is this the only thing that these
people are doing? The three, I guess.
MS. WAKAMATSU: You're talking about the. . .Clerk Typist III positions?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Uh-huh.
MS. WAKAMATSU:
Yes, they are working, Councilmember Nishiki, on a fulltime
basis. . .essentially, only on minutes transcription.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: From Council Services not from Clerk's office.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: And so, how far are we at in regards to the time that they're
putting in; what they're able to achieve and what we need to reach. . .(pause). . .to
become, I guess, updated?

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui
March 28, 2001

MS. WAKAMATSU: That is correct. If you want me to present the specific number of minutes
that have been completed-COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No.
MS. WAKAMATSU: --and the minutes that need to be completed, I would need to get those
figures.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No, I'm just, I'm just curious as far as with and how they're
moving right now and, and, and, and knowing what we're backlogged with. What would
be the point when we finally. . .are caught up and are legal? You don't know that
answer?
MS. WAKAMATSU: At this particular time, no I don't.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Nishiki, we'll put that to.. .
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Question.
CHAIR HOKAMA: . . .request to Ms. Wakamatsu and, and allow her sometime to, to get the
accurate information back-COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --to the Committee.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Thank you.
MS. WAKAMATSU: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you. Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah, Mr. Chairman, I thought I heard Diane say that all the
Council minutes are caught up with, is that correct?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Ms. Wakamatsu?
MS. WAKAMATSU: It's, it's.. .the backlog has been caught up with, in the sense that, it is in a
draft form.
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COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay.
MS. WAKAMATSU: It still needs to be reviewed and approved and finalized by the Clerk to
the Councilmen, the Assistant Clerk to the Council within our office.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: So, the backlog, I think, that minutes is actually in
Council Services. . .and that will be when Ken comes up, then we can ask him those
questions about how much more they have.
MS. WAKAMATSU: That is correct. That, that is why I was not able to answer that question in
particular because it's really, I need to get the information from that Division.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay. Actually, Mr. Chair, we can just ask Ken that when he
comes up next. . .about the backlog. And then also, don't we have an agreement,
whereby, between Council Services and the Clerk's office we can transfer funds back
and forth for the purpose of transcriptions? . . .(Pause). . . Or was that just a one-time
deal that we had?
MS. WAKAMATSU: I know in the last. . .budget cycle, that was. . .considered and actually
done. I'm not quite sure. I know that they are intending to put funds in, the Office of
Council Services, is to continue this. . .services that's being provided under this
program. So, you might ask for a clarification of that from the Director of Council
Services.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: So, are you holding those positions, those temporary
positions for your purposes or for Council Services purposes?
MS. WAKAMATSU: Well. . .my understanding was that we established and created the
positions under our office, so the services were to be shared between our office and
their office. And at this point and time, as I see it, the minutes are a priority of this
Council-COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Right.
MS. WAKAMATSU: --and they would like to be in compliance with catching up on any backlog
and this program seems to have been somewhat successful in achieving that without
over burdening the existing fulltime staff.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay. Thank you. Thank you, Mr. Chair.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you, Ms. Tavares. Mr. Kane? Thank you. Mr. Arakawa?
Thank you. Mr. Carroll? Thank you. Ms. Johnson? Thank you. Mr. Molina?
Thank you. Mr. Nishiki? Any further-COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Thank you. One, one question, Diane. Just so we get it clear
and we'll let Ken answer when he comes up for his portion. But the, the Clerk Typist
positions under your budget area is just to do transcription of Council meeting minut...,
minutes, is that right? And Committee meeting minutes would be the responsibility of
Ken and his staff? Or, or the transcribers under Council Services jurisdiction just do
Committee minutes and transcribers for you would just do Council minutes, is that right?
MS. WAKAMATSU: Chair Hokama, originally, when we established the position, we had them
specifically doing our Council meeting minutes. However, as the program is currently
operating, the need to do our minutes have been addressed and; therefore, at this
current time, they are working on Council Committee meeting transcription.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Okay, that, that's very clear now. Okay, Members, any further
questions for Ms. Wakamatsu? Mr. Arakawa?
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Just one follow up on that. Uh. . .Diane, so the, the actual
supervision of the employees even though they're doing OCS work, comes under Clerk
Office. . .or does Ken, is Ken the supervisor directly for that?
MS. WAKAMATSU:
In actuality, I have been working with Supervising
Committee Secretary Jo-Ann Sato and she has been in touch with the Director of
Council Services and that is how we have been operating the program to date.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: So, at this point, you feel that it's better to keep the position
in the Clerk's Office and operate the way you're doing rather than transfer the position
to OCS?
MS. WAKAMATSU: In actuality, I think, that is the most prudent way of operating it because
on our. . .in, within our office we have civil servants and the Office of Council Services
has appointees. So, when we establish these limited term appointments with the
Department of Personnel, we were able to do so because of the civil servants that we
have in our office.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Okay. Thank you.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. One last question for you, Diane, please. Do you think it would be
helpful in the budget proposal summaries to list position count numbers in, in the
Clerk's office?
MS. WAKAMATSU: Actually, I did notice that we didn't have that. I would see no problem in
listing the position count numbers, Chair Hokama.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, and, and we all know that the numbers fluctuate because of the
election requirements.
MS. WAKAMATSU: That is-CHAIR HOKAMA: The people who look at your budget will know that, oh, there is expansion,
it's for limited term, it's to address the election requirements and okay, so we
understand, you know, the differences every year.
MS. WAKAMATSU: That is correct because on election year, we would hire temporary
election's clerks and that would change the count within our office.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you. Any other further questions? I think, Diane, did a good
job and the Chair would recommend unless you folks need to, we may not need to bring
Clerk's office back for second round.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: No need. (Laughter).
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: No need.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Oh, just, just one more question since we may not bring her back.
Ms. Wakamatsu, you guys have made any changes in how you looking at record
keeping and record storage? If you guys, if the office is still looking at. . .what's the,
what's the word. . .digitizing or some kind of file, you know, new type of filing that would
reduce traditional storage requirements? Can you share if there's anything going on,
please.
MS. WAKAMATSU: Yes, Chair Hokama. I would like to see that as a priority for the Office of
the County Clerk within the current fiscal year and possibly the next fiscal year. I have
some ideas of brochures and information that I have from different companies on
proposals. I would feel, at this time, that when the County Clerk comes into the job, I
would like to discuss possible consideration for us to look into a serious method of
improving our records management.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. And I just want to ask that maybe you, your, the Clerk's office would
contact maybe Mr. Bissen. He did mention the amount of space he, he takes for his
records. I don't know who else takes tons of space maybe Corp. Counsel but you, as
the keeper of the County records. . .1 would be interested in knowing some
recommendations from your office.
MS. WAKAMATSU: Yes, Chairman Hokama, and I am in agreement on that and I will take
your recommendations into serious consideration. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you very much. Anything else for Ms. Wakamatsu? Seeing
none. Thank you very much for being with us this morning, Diane.
MR. MOTO: Mr. Chair, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Moto?
MR. MOTO: Mr. Chairman, this is for the information, this is in response to a point made
by. . .Councilmember Tavares regarding transfers of, of appropriations or monies
between, from one office to the other or one Office of the Council Services to the Office
of the County Clerk. I'll note, that the current fiscal year budget and this may have been
in previous year's budget, also, provides that appropriations for legislative functions;
meaning for the Office of Council Services and the Office of the County Clerk, are
deemed consolidated to the extent necessary to allow transfers or other adjustments by
Council resolution. So, there's a specific provision that's written into the budget with
regard to those two offices that allows consolidation to take place.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, Members, are you clear on what Mr. Moto just shared? Okay.
Thank you very much, Mr. Moto. At this time, the Chair will call a 10 minute recess and
we'll have the Council Services presentation after that. Short recess. . . .(gavel). . .
RECESS: 9:43 a.m.
RECONVENE: 9:55 a.m.
OFFICE OF COUNCIL SERVICES
CHAIR HOKAMA: . . .(gavel). . .
Budget and Finance Committee will reconvene.
. . .(Pause). . .
Members, at this time, we have Mr. Fukuoka, Director of
Council Services to present his budget overview. Ken.
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MR. FUKUOKA: Good morning, Members. Uh. . .oh, I. . .I'm Ken Fukuoka, Director of Council
Services. Going through the major items; major changes, actually, in our budget, you
know, I'd like to first mention that in the case of Akaku, we have to figure out a way to
address the ADA requirement. And in order to make the broadcast ADA compliant
there's--and maintain the same level of coverage that we're maintaining, that we're
having right now, we're anticipating a cost of about $60,000 more. So, that's one big
addition to the budget. We've looked at various alternatives but it now seems that the
most workable alternative would involve sign language, signing. Urn. . .we're trying to
do this, we're trying to look--we're, we're still trying to look at alternatives in coordination
with Akaku. Because, essentially, you know, this is the only point at which we would
have this kind of service consistently when these meetings are broadcast. The next
major increase is in the. . .financial audit area. This is an area we, we always request
for the second lowest bid that we had gotten the last time around. And the reason why
we always ask for that is because when we. . .um. . .well, one of the fears is that the
lowest person for whatever reason may drop out. And so, we have to be ready to, to
fund the next, the next highest; the next lowest bid and that's amounting to about
$35,000. For. . .similarly, in Professional Services, we're requesting 200,000, typically,
we request for 200,000. And the reason for that is. . .one never knows when the need
will come about but 200,000, as you folks know, from the litigation that happens in other
parts of the County; 200,000 can be eaten up pretty quickly if the Council has to defend
itself or for that matter to conduct a. . .a complex audit. Now, the, the, the. . .uncertain
thing about this is that we've never really had to draw down that much and so in the
end, what ends up happening is, much of this money ends up being lapsed. So, to that
degree, it's not, it's not used in that year, it is available for next year. But, I wanted to
explain that it's not really just a cushion. If the Council is to be taken seriously, it has to
have the resources to mount. . .legal defenses and to. . .initiate audits if the need arises.
On the other hand, you know, this is not something essential to the operations of
Council Services itself. So, the amount of this ends up being largely a policy decision
for the Council to make. Transcription Services; there are actually two components
here: one, is. . .Court Reporters, fees for court reporters or charges that we're hoping
to. . .use court reporters to work down the minutes backlog. Currently, we're not quite
current, in the current term, but we're pretty close to it. What we're trying to do right
now is refine the process of taking the meetings. . .that are currently being held and
when the secretaries cannot get to it or we project that they cannot get to it, then what
we're trying to do is to send them to court reporters. In order to do that we need to
videotape the meetings. When this budget was prepared, the expectation was that the
meetings that are filmed by Akaku, would be the ones that would be shifted to the court
reporters. More recently, we have been trying to tape the meetings; even the meetings
such as today, when Akaku is not really taping it and seeing whether the court reporters
can do a good job on them. Court Reporters need to be able to see the people who are
talking. So, we can out sort to Court Reporters only those. . .meetings that are taped;
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videotaped. To work down the backlog on audiotaped. . -- (CHANGE OF TAPE) --. .
.what we were intending to do is to use the transcribers and this is the program that you
talked about a little bit earlier with Diane Wakamatsu. The. . .that, that program was set
up in the Clerk's office, primarily, be..., be..., because during. . .the period of time when
you have temporary election workers in that office, there are certain desks that are filled
and then when they're not there, there are desks that are open. And so, the thought
was that those open desks could be used by temporary workers. At that point, there
was a need for working down the backlog of both the Clerks' Council me..., meeting
minutes and the Committee meeting minutes. Urn. . .because the Clerk's office has
access to eligible's lists, you know, in the regular course of business in the. . .civil
service type of operation that they have to run there, it seemed like they would be the
natural agency to coordinate that. When they started out, they worked the Council
meeting minutes because it was logical that they would want to work on one type of
format, one type of meeting format. As it turned out, they were able to work down their
backlog, to the point where they have drafts ready for review. Now ours, are still being
done. Our backlog is much bigger; it was much bigger, at the time we started and still is
much bigger, of course. Now. . .our plan is to supplement the funds that they have
budgeted for next year, the, what, what we talked about a little bit earlier, or what you
folks talked about a little bit earlier, about the budget authority for transfers. There is,
there has been for many years, this, this general language saying that transfers
between the branches of the legislative branch, in other words, between Council
Services and Council. . .County Clerk's Office, can be done by resolution. And that
language is designed really to address something else as a problem. That language
was designed to prevent a reinterpretation of the Charter and require an ordinance to do
transfers. The reason why that would be important is because, if the ordinance process
were to be used then the Mayor would have a say in transfers within the legislative
branch, which was thought, at that point, not to be necessary. What I had talked about
earlier, you know, in my memo; March 8 th memo, was. . .was a, an administrative
authority. Basically, if the Council Chair authorized a transfer between the two
branches then it would not have to come for Council resolution. That process was
implemented for Fiscal 2000 but we did not implement it for this year and, frankly, I just
forgot to ask. The reason why that's very desirable from our standpoint is--even at this
point--we're not really quite sure what the proper mix is for these transcriber positions
that handle audiotapes versus the court reporter type work which needs videotapes.
And it would be helpful to have the ability to adjust for the. . .proper mix to get the, to get
the work done. . . .(Long pause). . . I think, that's about it. I can respond to questions
at this point.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you, Ken. We'll start with Ms. Tavares, on the right.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Getting back to the transcription. Whoa, let's get back to the
ADA requirements. What if a member of the public is attending the meetings in person
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that has, is hearing impaired, aren't we not then obligated to provide sign, a signer or
something to accommodate that person?
MR. FUKUOKA: Yes we are. Under those conditions, what happens is, the person
with-there's a notice on the agenda-COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Right.
MR. FUKUOKA: --which indicates that the person should call in and we, we make the
arrangements.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: So, is it the fact that it's being televised what kicks it into the
automatic mode?
MR. FUKUOKA: Yes, and, and, frankly, I had a hard time believing that we would be subject
to it. But after checking it through, it does seem that. . .in all likelihood, even if, you
know, even if it was thought appropriate to go ahead and challenge that kind of
interpretation, we'd-COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: --have a hard time prevailing.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Mr. Chair, maybe you, and or, Mr. Kane, can shed some light
on what the Counties do? Has this been a topic in HSAC at all. . .about the interpretive
services for televised? 'Cause, I think, every County is televising over public access,
now, their meetings. Any discussions happen in those meetings regarding how they're
doing it?
MR. FUKUOKA: If I may? We did check with Kauai County.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Uh-huh.
MR. FUKUOKA: Actually, what happened was the fella [sic] who was working in the
Corp. Counsel's office handling some of this in Hawaii County, ended up working for
Maui Corp. Counsel's office and so we kind of explored that. In, in the end, I believe,
what happened was they, they came to an arrangement; a settlement and. . .um. . .1
think what ends up happening is for a while they ended up not televising--well, they
don't have the problem of televising "live".
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Uh-huh.
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MR. FUKUOKA: So, what, what they do is they. . .they insert the captioning within a certain
timeframe.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Oh, afterward.
MR. FUKUOKA: Afterward, yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Afterwards. Oh, I see. So, closed captioning versus signing,
it turns out that signing is the more economical way to. . .to do our meetings?
MR. FUKUOKA: It turns out that it's the more doable way. Technically,. . .technologically,
right now, this year anyway, it's very difficult to get the type of people you need to do
this kind of work.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Uh-huh.
MR. FUKUOKA: To work them into the system so that, it can appear on broadcasts originating
from here. Now, part of this had to do with the availability of personnel in, in Hawaii-COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Uh-huh.
MR. FUKUOKA: --and certainly, on this island but part of it also has to do with limitations on
the kind of communications we have. I mean, if you think about it, in concept, if you had
a real good. . .system of connecting. . .the, the signal; the, the video signal from this
room, to wherever the transcriber is at or wherever this captioner is at, and we had a
real good signal or a real good way of getting that persons input back. Technologically,
it kind of make sense to even be feasible and it is done actually in other places. It's just
that we don't have, right now, this ability to, to stream this video directly and reliably--it
has to be really reliable as you might imagine for our purposes, to the homes of these
Captioners. And typically, these Captioners apparently work out of their homes. Now,
in the mainland, they have satellite connections that somehow enable this but, right
now, we don't, we haven't been able to find a route. Now, that is something we were
thinking about though and we, we do intend to pursue it and monitor it just like speech
recognition because at some point it's gonna work. Now, one of the problems though is
that originally we had high hopes that by taking care of the captioning, we'd be able to
take care of the minutes. So, we wouldn't have to do double cost here but as it, as it
turns out, the captioning itself is not always that useable; it, there's, there's
paraphrasing involved which I didn't know, actually, until. . .1 got really into this thing.
And-COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: (Chuckle).
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MR. FUKUOKA: --and so, it, it isn't quite as reliable as we had thought and so, there would be
a lot of clean up work that has to be done in converting the captions into minute form.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you. Mr. Kane.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: I'll pass this round.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you. Mr. Arakawa?
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: No questions.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Mr. Carroll? Thank you. Ms. Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes, Ken, I was just, you know, just generally, and I don't
know, you may have already answered the questions in what you've given us. But just
looking at the expended fiscal year ending 6-30-00 on the Detail, that's Page 5-11, then
the. . .appropriated fiscal year ending 6-30-01 and then looking at the projection. I'm,
I'm just looking at the standpoint of how do we--when our constituents say, whoa, you
know, your budgets really gone up in that area. I know that when you look at that on the
surface it looks really bad but what are we gonna say or what are you gonna tell us to
say. . .(chuckle). . .to our constituents when they ask, isn't that quite a leap?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: This is the transcription program?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Well, I'm looking at, I'm looking at the whole, it's the
Council Services program, and it says, total for Council Services program. It goes from
422,138 in '00 to 1,403,626 in 6-30-01 and then 1,698,480. So, I'm, I'm, I'm just
looking, I kind of think I know the answer just by what you've already said with the ADA
compliance, the fact that our budgets basically for our Council staff have, have gone up.
And.. .
MR. FUKUOKA: No.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: . . .1 just want to be able to address that if someone would
question me on it.
MR. FUKUOKA: Well,. . .um. . .what I tell people. . .is our staff has not really increased as
much as, you know, you would think; not, not recently. The, the real thing is we've,
we've finally come to the point where we've. . .we've had to face the decision on
whether we further. . .try to, try to squeeze more out of the staff. . .that's there or
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whether we really have to look at dramatic changes in order to bring ourselves into
compliance with the law. Now, these laws are not things that the Council creates and,
you know, I mean, the laws are well intentioned but ADA, Sunshine Law minutes; these
are not things that are matters of choice. There are a lot of things in government that
are expensive but they're there because, at some point, people wanted them. And what
we're--the, the reason to me, the reason, the main reason for these, for this year's
increase is because we have, we have come to the point where, we do not believe that,
we can in good faith, defend any further delay in pursuing these. . .compliance with
these mandates. That's really what it amounts, too.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: And it was just pointed out to me, too, by one of the other
assistants to because I'm just looking at one aspect of it. That, as you say, the salaries
and wages have actually, you know, not increased but that the operations--and,
basically, what you're saying then is because of the compliance requirements with ADA
that that's what's caused a lot of this increase.
MR. FUKUOKA: And, and there is another thing, if, if, if I may? Just, just. . .you know, one of
things that people don't realize is that. . .you know, they think that the legislative branch
is, is only about talking; they think it's easy. It's not like the Fire Department or the
Police Department, you know, there's no life saved, there's no real deliverable. But
democracy; open democracy is an expensive proposition and if you don't spend the
money to do--if you don't spend the money to go to Molokai and Lanai then they
become disenfranchised or at least they perceive that they're disenfranchise which is
almost as bad. It's, it's hard to explain the need to have some. . .it's hard to explain to
people sometimes that government wants to be businesslike but can never be a
business. Because government can..., cannot fail, it doesn't have the option of failing; it
doesn't have the option of losing money, you have to deliver the services. The people
define the services through the laws that their elected representatives pass and really,
it's maybe not an easy argument to make but it's not like, I think, the Council has much
choice in the matter.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: No, and I, I appreciate your answer. Because, I think, that I
recognize that just as a. . .you know, constituent, which I was not to long ago before I
came into elected office and these are the questions that so many times we ask. And I
was an advocate for, you gonna have to spend some money to get good quality service.
And; therefore, the legal aspects, the legal advice that we get from outside or the
transcription, to more quickly deal with the minutes; to deal with a lot of things that come
before the Council, before us, just as a legislative body, I think, we have to be
responsive and also do it in a timely manner. Also, comply with all the requirements
that are thrust upon us by the Federal government, State government, I mean, typically,
they, they require it but they don't provide any funding for it. So, when I'm looking at
this, I don't dispute whatsoever the need for it, I totally concur with it. And, I guess,
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what I'm saying or what I'm asking is if there is any justification beyond what we already
have; if there are other things that are included in the budget, that may not just leap out
at us. That we would be able to justify to the public, is this a good use of public funds?
And, I think you've given me enough. If there's more, if Michele has more, you know,
that's fine but we, we always have to justify-MR. FUKUOKA: I, I, I-COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: --why we expend public money.
MR. FUKUOKA: I do understand that and my comments, you know, I hope are not interpreted
to say that. . .you know, the operations have reached optimal levels. You know, it's, it's
something that you, you always have to change; you always have to adjust, partly
because the environment needs to change and you have to adjust to that. So,
operationally, we have to keep trying new things but it's just that. . .in these two areas
there, there really is no alternative but to do something dramatic. And short of actually
cutting back on the services that the legislative branch offers, which I kind of define as,
you know, meetings and getting out to have people understand that you have adequate
thought going on, behind the laws that are passed. Short of cutting that back then there
has to be an adequate. . .recognition of. . .you know, the costs you have to undertake in
order to comply with all of these laws which reflect actually the people's intent.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Thank you much, very much, Mr. Fukuoka, for ex..., just, I
guess, verifying what, what we all know and I think of us, all as a proactive Council. So,
perhaps, this is even more important that we do have that ability to have funding so that
we can properly respond to the public which has always been a criticism of government.
So, I, I, I appreciate it and I appreciate your candor and I'm sure Michele will give us all
the ammunition we need, too. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Good morning, Ken. Is there a cap as
to how much Akaku can charge the County for broadcasting public information? Are
they bound to charge us the real basic low rate?
MR. FUKUOKA: No, actually, the way this works out is. . .Akaku receives funding from the
cable subscribers. You know, when, when they, when the cable companies are, are
given the, in effect the monopoly, then they are forced into funding these, these public
access programs. So Akaku, from its side, is providing some of, some of that resource
toward covering the meeting because these meetings are within. . .a part of what
Akaku's purpose for being is. But that is not really enough, I think, in the minds of the
Council and so, what we try to do is supplement those monies. And there is a limit, you
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know, I mean, there's a certain amount that's supplemented--it's gone up dramatically.
But if you take that amount that's. . .granted to Akaku for this purpose and you take the
money or you take the amount of resources that Akaku is then devoting to, to this, then
you combine them, then that is the total cost of the program. So, it's not, it's not
like. . .(pause). . .we're getting the cheapest rate, it's not like they're charging anybody
else actually to do this. It's, it's a joint project run by them; funded at this point, you
know, primarily, actually by the County but it has been, I think, a good way to do it so
far anyway.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Mr. Molina. Mr. Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Pass.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah, thank you. I wanted to let Michele explain something
about the way the details are set up that might help all of us understand it. 'Cause even
I was thrown off a little, the way the totals come out at the bottom on 5-11. When you
look at the year ending 6-30-00, you know, it says, 422 and then you jump over to what
we're doing here, it's 1.6 million. And I thought that's what Jo Anne was kind of
referring to.
MR. FUKUOKA: Oh, sorry.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: And. . .uh. . .Michele was kind of explaining it to me 'cause I
had that look on my face so (chuckle) she maybe could explain it to everybody.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Budget Director.
MS. YOSHIMURA: Mr. Chair. On Page 5-11, the total for fiscal year ending 2002 in each
Council Member's office, and if you would refer to Page 5-9, you would see one lump
sum amount. Okay, and, I guess, that's the amount that's appropriated to each office
and it's not broken down into subobject code nor is it, nor is any salaries appropriated
through there. Okay, when the funds are expended then it would be properly charged
to the proper index or subobject code. So, until the salaries and wages are paid, it's not
gonna reflect in the "A" account, it's gonna reflect in the "B" account. So, if you look on
Page 5-4, where there's a summary of the salaries and wages, you would notice that in
the Fiscal Year 2002 column, there's no appropriated amounts but in the expended
column for 2000, that would be the actual expenditure for salaries and wages out of
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each office. And that's where you'd see the difference. . .the money would shift from
the "B" account to the "A" account.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay. So, Mr. Chairman, if I may?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: The, the better place to look at what the op..., the costs are is
actually on the program budget on 5-3 and you can see the comparison on the bottom
line. . .from the actuals from, you know, 1998 to the, you know, proposed. So, you don't
see that huge jump of 1.5 million in there, like you would if you just look at the "B"
account, which is what that is on 5-11 that you were looking at. . . .(Pause). . . I have
another question-CHAIR HOKAMA: Proceed.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: --that was my question. That was just clarification. In the
expenditure for the legislature, I think, I want to make a pitch for, I think, it's time that we
stop doing what we're doing with the legislature, legislative. . .gifts that this Council
annually has been doing or giving to the State Legislature. I, I believe that other
Counties have stopped doing it or never did it but Maui County has always done this gift
basket kind of idea with the State Legislature, Legislators for the opening of the
legislative session. And I think that maybe that's one account we can, we can stop
expending funds on, you know, especially, we looking at trying to spend money, you
know, more or less wisely. That we look at this particular thing and, and it seems sort
of, kind of crazy that, you know, we're, we're lobbying our State Legislators in this
particular way. And if you've been to the legislature, you see they have tons of stuff
from all over the place and even though, I'm sure, our gift baskets are appreciated, I
don't think they feel it's necessary. And some Legislators have commented to me that
we don't need to do this kinda thing, you know, we're all kind of in this together. So, I'd
like to see some consideration or some discussion regarding this. I don't know, if I'm
the only one that feels this way but I think it's something that we should, we should kind
of look at. And also, I guess, from the, I, I wasn't at the legislative dinner, so I don't
know how, how that went totally. If that met our expectation or if, if we felt it was worth it
and, you know, the expense that we go through for that particular. . .you know,
reception or whatever. Maybe if this group could discuss that, I think, I'd appreciate
that, too. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you. Ken, why don't tell the Committee what falls within this
specific account besides the legislative dinner that we recently held and. . .the Opening
Day Gift that Charmaine has mentioned. What else would fall in this category?
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MR. FUKUOKA: In this category, I think, we have some travel-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, Members, and at this point,-COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: 5-6.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --I'm referring to a March 27 th memorandum from Mr. Fukuoka-COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --to the Budget Committee and this is on his attachment which is Fiscal
Year 2002 budget request and my understanding this is the revised numbers from Ken.
And in the middle of his breakdown it's Legislature Contingency; 2001, $10,000
appropriation; Fiscal Year 2002 a request for 15,900 which is a 5,900 increase or
59 percent. Okay, Ken.
MR. FUKUOKA: Yes, the increase is primarily due to travel. The--you know, when you look at
the figures over here, one of the things to remember--and, and this is something that
we're, we're in the process of actually correcting. Is that most of the legislative travel
was actually booked, was actually recorded in other accounts; in other words, we didn't
segregate out legislative travel. Sometimes, the reason why it wasn't done in the past is
because it's kind of difficult sometimes to determine whether a person who goes to
Honolulu to take in a seminar and then to actually do some lobbying. It's hard to
determine whether, you know, that trip ought to be booked to the seminar or the
lobbying and that's sort of issue, you know, arose, I think, in the past. And so, there
was a tendency to book the travel for legislative purposes in the regular operations
account and not book it to this Legislative Contingency which is what we're trying to
correct. But, that's why, when you look at the amount expended, it's so low. What
happens is the amount is appropriated, it's not, I mean, we don't budget this
contingency, since it's just a contingency. We don't budget it; allocating it out to airfare
or per diem or anything like that. What we do is we have an amount there and
then. . .as we expend it, it's actually assigned to a particular subobject code. And that's
why the expenditure figures, you know, you'll see a lot more detail than in, in, than the
appropriated columns. . .but that, but that's basically the explanation. Urn. . .as to what
else-CHAIR HOKAMA: So, tell us where, where was it being charged to Ken?
MR. FUKUOKA: --you know there, there-CHAIR HOKAMA: Where was it being charged to the individual accounts?
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MR. FUKUOKA: No, it would be charged to. . .Page 5-5, you see the travel. That would be
the, the general office account. But the appropriated figure. . .increased because we
thought that there was going to be more traveling on the part of the Members to
the. . .legislature. But, actually, you know, when I think about it now, there hasn't been
that much more travel. It's just that in the beginning, if you recall, there was a lot of talk
about different people going up and so that was a difference, that was a difference in
practice from what we had experienced before. And so, that's why we, if you look at
the, the backup sheet, the worksheet for the travel, you know, it shows that increase.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Mr. Chairman?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah so, can you tell us how much was spent on the. . .the
gifts for the Legislators and how much was spent on the dinner?
MR. FUKUOKA: Urn.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: I mean, what fund did that come out of or what object,
subobject code?
MR. FUKUOKA: That would have come out of the Legislative Contingency and. . .1 can get it
back to you. You know, if, I can get back to you on this. It was in the neighborhood, I
think, of about $3,000 for the gifts and the, the reception, I think, was someplace in the
neighborhood of. . .not counting the travel now-COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Uh-huh.
MR. FUKUOKA: --for the Members to go, I think, it was something in the neighborhood of
$2,500? Is it? I'm sorry, I gotta get back to you on this.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay.
MR. FUKUOKA: It's not fair for me to speculate. Oh yeah, and the Administration paid half,
this year. So, there's a joint-COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Oh, yeah. That's right.
MR. FUKUOKA: --it was a joint thing but I'm sorry I have to get back to you on that.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, we'll get that information for you, Ms. Tavares. Thank you.
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COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Thank you.
MR. FUKUOKA: Oh, and, and I'm sorry it took me so long to get to, to the question but the
other things are relatively minor things like. . .the, the certain supplies we buy to prepare
those legislative binders-COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Uh-huh.
MR. FUKUOKA: --and things like that. So, those are charged.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. The cost for. . .all this testimony being. . .prepared and sent on
behalf of either the Council as a whole or individual members, that's coming out of this
account also?
MR. FUKUOKA: No. No. Those are just general office matters.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Mr. Kane?
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Ken, is. . .um. . .per diem for
non-reportable, reportable non-taxable. . .and reportable taxable, the whole per diem is,
is that through County Code? Are we just following some County Code?
MR. FUKUOKA: Yes. Urn.. .
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: And is it specific just to the Council as far as how we function
through Charter or can you be more specific. . .on how that operates and how, how,
what that function is?
MR. FUKUOKA: Okay. First of all, the per diem levels are established by the County Code
which, of course, was enacted as an ordinance. It hasn't been adjusted in a while.
There was an adjus..., and, but it, but it usually tracks the, the collective bargaining
rates. Now, recently the collective bargaining rates were reduced for intra-day travel, I
think, it was. Anyway, there was, there was a change recently, and the Code provision
has not been adjusted to conform to that, yet. So, so, you know, there is that sort of
difference but the Code provision normally applies to people who are not in collective
bargaining. So, that would include everybody in Council Services, that would include
the Members, the Mayor, the Directors, yeah, anybody who's not covered by a
collective bargaining agreement. Now, where, where you get this reportable;
non-reportable is, is where, for IRS purposes. When the County ends up reporting what
its employees are making; the IRS says, that for a particular area a per diem rate of "x"
amount is okay. And, if the County pays more then that then it's considered, in the
IRS's eyes, as income that has to be taxed. So, up to a certain level it's okay. IRS is
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saying that. . .that's, that's within reason, you know, that they can justify it without
asking for all kinds of detail from the taxpayer. But then if the taxpayer is receiving from
the County more than that, then that's thought to be. . .taxable unless the taxpayer can
justify it. And so, that's the reason why, especially, when, when you dealing with out of
State per diem, where you go to an area where. . .um. . .there's a higher per diem rate
than is allowed by IRS as non..., as non-reportable. Then we need to segregate out
that amount. And that's the reason why we have this difference here but, yeah, in
general the per diem is determined by County Code.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Okay. I have another question but it's in another area so, I guess,
I'll pass.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you. Mr. Arakawa?
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: He used my question. I'll pass.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you. Mr. Kane?
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you, Mr. Arakawa, and Mr. Chairman. Different topic. The
nine laptops under, under the Expansion, if, and the portable laptops, that nine, at 3,000
each for a $27,000 equipment expansion, specifically, if, and I'm sorry if I missed your
explanation if I did, what is that for?
MR. FUKUOKA: That's for the Member's offices. Urn.. .
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Was this a request that was made by a particular member or a
group of members for this?
MR. FUKUOKA: No, no. It wasn't any specific request. I, I guess it had been talked about
here and there but--no, it actually came from us.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Us? You, you?
MR. FUKUOKA: From me. . .me and Martha Suzuki. The, the thrust of this is that. . .currently,
the Members are. . .sort of on their own when it comes to maintaining the computers,
other than the standard issue desktop the computers get. In other words, if, if a
Council Member comes in and then. . .wants something different from--something in
addition to, actually, the, the desktop unit that is provided by Council Services, then the
member uses the Member's individual account to go ahead and purchase it. And that
was thought to be probably the best way to do it because when you go ahead and buy a
laptop, especially, there's, there's a lot of trade-offs you have to make in terms of
features and weight and cost. And so, it becomes a very individualized decision, it's
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hard to have a, a. . .a standard. Urn. . .one of the complications though is it becomes
more difficult to support it and so, from our standpoint, you know, it appeared that a lot
of members were having des..., I mean, were, were, were wanting to use laptops. We
were having requests to specify, you know, an appropriate unit. In addition, we've
always had difficulties when you hook up these non-standard units to the. . .to the LAN.
And maintaining, you know, different types of units is just more difficult than maintaining
one type of unit where you can get familiar, where you can become familiar with, with
the weaknesses of that particular model. Now, many of the PCs in the Member's offices
are, are getting. . .kind of old; ready for replacement and we had thought that it was a
good time to try to standardize these PCs. The need for individualization seemed to be
less urgent as it was in the past because it appeared that when people purchased these
notebook computers; when the Members decided to buy them, they would end up
requesting input from. . .uh. . .Martha Suzuki. And pretty much, you know, the decision
seemed to be based more on price and power then on features. So, it didn't seem that
individualization was that important to the Members, at least, the current set of
Members. So, that's the reason why it's there.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you. Mr. Carroll?
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Thank you, Chair. We were talking about ADA again You
went over about hearing imparred [sic], you know, what we have to do to go through.
Are there any requirements for any other ADA requirements that you have for people
coming before you? Before, people coming to this body to give testimony; for instance,
a quadriplegic in an electric chair that would be here all day; are you required in any
way to accommodate them?
MR. FUKUOKA: Well. . .1 have to say that I'm not expert in this area but our general approach
is that if we know that there is an issue, if we know that there is a problem, then we, we
address it, we try to address it as soon as possible. Now, in terms of a member of the
public coming in to a Council meeting, I guess, there are a variety of disabilities that we
would want to be able to address. And, I guess, the reason why you have this notice
provision in the agendas is to recognize that it's gonna take, you know, a few hours at
least to try to set up a reasonable accommodation. There are, you know, I, the, I'm
aware of certain shortfalls in the facilities here. I think, we've talked about that part of it.
The issue there is the degree to which. . .true compliance would match up with the
funding required. But that that is something, yeah, I think, we're continuing to work on,
on a more limited basis, not to achieve full compliance but to better the situation. To get
into compliance to the degree that we can without moving walls and things like that. But
in that case, you know, I think where, where our office is, is that we're not. . .out of legal
compliance, technically. In other words, we're not subject to a suit. Now, this thing
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about the Akaku thing, there, I think, we have some potential for exposure, you know,
there's no grandfathering provision that can apply to us there. So, I don't mean that to
be an excuse for not bringing things into compliance to the degree that we can but that
that's an explanation that there is a difference in, in the type of. . .in the severity or, or
the importance--the urgency--I guess, of our need to respond to the situation.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: . . .(Sigh). . . Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, Mr. Carroll.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: I don't know, since, we're talking about budget in this
Department and we starting to talk about actual, you know, the facility itself. What
would be the best place to bring that up?
CHAIR HOKAMA: The subject matter per se, I would say, kind of goes in your committee.
You're the subject matter chairman.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Thank you.
MR. FUKUOKA: Well, if I may, Mr. Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, Ken.
MR. FUKUOKA: If, you know, at one time, we had talked, I think, about the possibility of
having at least one set of restrooms; for example-COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Right.
MR. FUKUOKA: --to be fully ADA compliant. In other words, entranceway widths; things like
that, fully ADA compliant. Now, that might be expensive. If it's going to be expensive
and if you're talking about an improvement to be initiated within the next fiscal year,
then you'd have to provide for the funding in this budget. You know; like for instance, if,
if the idea was on floor one; on the first floor of this building, you know, they, there
would have to be. . .walls shifted, you know. And it's gonna expensive because these,
these are load bearing walls that are, you know, holding up the rest of the building and
that kind of thing. Then the only way to get it started, at least
construction. . .- (CHANGE OF TAPE) -. . .fiscal year would be actually funded. On
the other hand, you know, sizing up the situation wouldn't cost as much. In other words,
you know, the design work or looking at alternatives. . .wouldn't necessarily cost that
much. . .and possibly could be done within the budgets of whatever agencies are
involved.
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COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: That's why I brought this up because I was wondering how
we could pursue this and get something like that in the budget this year. If this was the
right place to do it.
CHAIR HOKAMA: For money, yeah, this is the place to do it, Mr. Carroll.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: I would like to see some monies set aside to at least explore
how much it would cost to have at least one restroom in the building available. Because
there is not one restroom that--I understand on the 7 th floor, the women's bathroom is
but. . .1 don't think they want that for general use for the public. And there should be at
least one on one floor over here. And as far as load bearing walls, you don't have to
address load-bearing walls to convert any of restrooms over here. So, we're not talking
about a huge amount of money but I would like to see that entered somewhere in the
budget, that we could have at least one in the building. I myself, I'm fortunate, you
know, I don't have to need special accommodations. However, we do have people that
come over here that. . .1 don't care if we're required to or not, I think, we owe it to the
public to not to discriminate against people that are not coming over here because of
the simple fact that they can't stay over here because there's no restroom facilities. And
I would like to see that in the budget somewhere and that's why I was asking where
would it be appropriate. I didn't mean in a committee, I meant in a, if we can put
something in the budget to at least. . .explore how much it would cost. And I don't really
know how to go about this, is why I'm asking.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Carroll, why don't. . .my suggestion to you is why don't you have a
discussion with Mr. Goode, Public Works Director, and see, you know, if he can get
some estimates through his Engineering Division. Or what, you know, I'm sure you
could explain to him exactly what you're looking for in a ADA compliant restroom facility
and I'm sure he could help you get an estimate figure on what it would take to
accomplish your project.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: And what budget would this go in, what Department would it
go in?
CHAIR HOKAMA: I would, I would think it would be part of the building maintenance.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Building maintenance.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, Budget Director.
MS. YOSHIMURA: I'd just like to point out that there is a County-wide government facility
improvement for CIP and in this project, we are proposing renovations to the second
floor. So, maybe at that same time, we could look at renovating the bathroom on the
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second floor to make it ADA compliant. So, there is already a proposal on Page 28-4 of
your program book in the CIP for $500,000 to take care of some of the government's
facility improvements. Maybe we could add some kind of design or use some of this
funds for a design or some kind of study to see if we need to or the cost that it would
take to go and fully construct the, the.. .
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Could you get back to me on that?
MS. YOSHIMURA: Sure.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Thank you. That's all.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Carroll.
MR. FUKUOKA: Mister, Mr. Chair, could I just add in something really briefly. If, if the thought
is to rearrange the inside, as we talked, as opposed to actually getting all of the
entryways, you know, into compliance. I have, you know, I've talked already with the
ADA Coordinator and he has agreed to sketch it out and submit to, you know--it slips
me now but there's an agency in Honolulu that they have to submit the plans to for
clearance. . .for review.. .
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Commission.
MR. FUKUOKA: No, it's not. Anyway, the, the idea was they would have to get some kind of
input by, by an agency of some sort. And then after they have the general sketch, the
idea was that I was going to talk with Public Works to see whether. . .how, how it would
be. . .oh, Commission on Disabilities in Honolulu. But the idea was, there, I would have
to start talking to Public Works about how to actually spec out, you know, the design
and bid out the work. But, I think, what we were talking about at that point was,
basically, removing one toilet stall, making the stall larger, I'm talking about the men's
side, anyway.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Right.
MR. FUKUOKA: And then, in other words, that's what I was saying, bring it as much into
compliance as possible without, you know, actually changing load bearing walls, that
sort of thing. . .yeah, it doesn't sound that expensive to do. So, I think, the. . .the idea
was to, to get it designed and done. . .for the eighth floor, anyway, we're gonna start.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Okay. We have, is the Administration going to do, you're
going to do that or are, are we going to be together over here or. . .
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MR. FUKUOKA: Well, that's. . .that's what I need to talk to Public Works about.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Yeah.
MR. FUKUOKA: After I get a sketch and after they determine that it's, the sketch is okay.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Okay. Okay, if you could get back to me on that, then.
MR. FUKUOKA: Sure. Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Mr. Carroll.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Which page was that?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Oh, Budget Director, what page were you referring to regarding the
County-wide funds for.. .
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: 28-4.
MS. YOSHIMURA: It's on Page 28-4.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you. 28-4. So, Ken, this Chamber, just the Chamber is
under the responsibility of the Clerk's office, everything outside of the Chamber
is. . .uh. . .Council Services, and or, Public Works?
MR. FUKUOKA: Urn. . .(pause). . .you know, I think, it's not been really entirely. . .clear, I
mean, lines haven't been really drawn, there's, there's some overlap. But, yes,
generally, the Chamber, the lobby area, I think, normally the Clerk's office has
been. . .covering, you know, monitoring, overseeing.
CHAIR HOKAMA: They've been, they've been having the assignment of being responsible?
MR. FUKUOKA: Right. And then.. .
CHAIR HOKAMA: So, the lobby area would include the restrooms? I would assume.
MR. FUKUOKA: Well, not, not necessarily. You know, I think, that's an area that it's kind of
on the margin. The only reason I say lobby area is, is because I know the Clerk's office
has traditionally taken care of the signage. But, on the other hand, you know, when the
purchases of the furniture; the waiting area furniture out there came up, our office
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handled it. So, I don't think that there's a specific person accountable for that function.
In fact, you know, one of the problems we have is sometimes we do things that we don't
inform Public Works who has general control of the building and sometimes it makes it
hard for them. Because they need to know if we make electrical changes, things like
that, their maintenance people have to know what, what (chuckle) what's, what's in
store for the floor, so.
CHAIR HOKAMA: No, and the only reason I ask you that, Ken, is. . .you know, if, if we decide
to put it let's say under Clerk's office as, as a. . .CIP project. For the Clerk that would be
priority one 'cause, basically, that's the only project they gonna have to be concerned
with. You put it in Public Works, it's gonna be one of a hundred projects and the
attention and priority we get is gonna be dependant on, I guess, who's stepping on
whose button, at what point.
MR. FUKUOKA: Urn. . .yes, that that, that is true. Yeah, any agency is gonna have other
things to do, I mean, the Clerk's office has a lot of other stuff to do, too. It's a little bit,
it's one step removed to have the Administration handle things. In some ways, they're
the most capable of doing this kind of thing but it is one step removed. I, I tend to think,
though, that the Administration is not going to be unreasonable with the Council, I
mean, it wouldn't be in their interest. But, it is true, that sometimes it-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
MR. FUKUOKA: --takes time to get to jobs. And, it, it, it doesn't matter so much, I think, where
the money is, you know, if the money is--let's say, the money is in Council Services and
then the Administration undertakes the project and they ask for a transfer. I mean, we
would pay the Administration to do it. I mean, so it's not so much a money issue, I
think.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Since we-MR. FUKUOKA: I mean, not, not this level-CHAIR HOKAMA: You know, since we're talking about Chambers and, and Ms. Tavares kind
of brought it up in a round-a-bout way earlier. Was there ever consideration for face
lifting the Chambers whether it be a. . .new carpet or whether it be changing. . .the
wallpaper or, or something like that? You folks ever. . .discuss that as part of a budget
consideration?
MR. FUKUOKA: No, we, we didn't consider it. It, it has come up though about. . .about
maybe--
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COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Five years ago.
MR. FUKUOKA: --two or three terms ago. There was some thought about, you know,
changing the configuration of the chambers so that the members would be able to face
the audience, it was that sort of thing. But, aside from that sort of, you know, really
large type of renovation, I know that there has been a concern for years by Akaku that
this, this carpet is terrible for. . .video pictures. You know, it, it, it kind of.. .
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Clashes.
MR. FUKUOKA: . . .unless you got a really good TV, it kind of bleeds all over the place. And
so, it's, it's. . .that has come up. We have never really gotten to the point of actually
having a member want to change it, it's an expensive kind of thing but.. .
CHAIR HOKAMA: How old is this carpet?
MR. FUKUOKA: It, I think, it was when the building was built, yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Is this the original from the opening?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: It's like our chairs.
CHAIR HOKAMA: But we made headway on, on, on that last year.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: At least that (chuckle).
CHAIR HOKAMA: We made (chuckle) headway on that last year. Okay. I'm sorry. Mr.
Carroll, I'm sorry. Are you done with your, your question?
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Yes, the reason I brought this up now is, like I said, I wasn't
too sure how to go about it and I did want to see it in the budget somewhere. And, if the
explanation that Ken has given us is satisfactory to other members, I'm satisfied with it.
Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you. Ms. Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes, and, and I really echo what Bob is saying because I
think that we have to try to do everything that we can to make everyone feel that this
facility, you know, what we're doing is really gonna accommodate the needs of all
people. The, the one thing that I think we are doing is that we're making every
reasonable attempt to accommodate. And basically, when you look at the ADA
compliance requirements, that's pretty much the way it's phrased, that you make every
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reasonable effort to accommodate special needs individuals and I, I think that we're
genuinely doing that. Uh. . .the, the other issue, and I know Riki and I had been
speaking about this the other day in conversation. One of the difficulties I have, even
just from a standpoint of even. . .focusing sometimes, there, there's several things on
this floor that are, that are hard to deal with. The Chambers is one issue with regard to
the carpeting because the light reflection and how you actually see; I get tremendous
eyestrain, just myself. The lighting is not that good, it's very difficult to do what we have
to do. I notice sometimes people even at the podium, even just simple things, like
putting a light maybe so that they can have it focusing down on their paper; small
things, the reflective wall paper. I. . .well, these may seem cosmetic things. I think, just
in terms of functioning in the most efficient and effective way possible and trying to
maintain your focus. I, I really don't even like physically looking at the carpeting. If you
look at all kinds of studies that have been conducted even by Maui Community College,
they've actually conducted surveys and studies or taken it from past studies that have
been done about ways to properly design rooms. I'm not saying that has to be done
now, but I think that we've gotta move in this area. The film; for example, on our
windows, when I focus out. . .after a while, I get this tremendous headache because the
film is so old that it's really not--I just assume have my curtains or my little blinds down
then. Because just the physical act of having my eyes try to focus on something that
will never come into focus, it really creates a lot of eye strain. The, the other thing in the
back, just from a physical sanitary standpoint; the furnishings in the back, I don't know if
that's within Council Services but those are nasty. (Chuckle) They really are not. . .I'm
even embarrassed to have just the general public go back there if, if they have to on
occasion. So, I think, just generally an overview and evaluation looking at not only the
ADA compliance things but the things that are good for our health, the health of all the
people that work on this floor. I. . .1 know we have tremendous problems with the
building, the air quality's been looked at; I know we try to do things in a, in an intelligent
way. But whatever we can do to move into an area that's going to make this a. . .a
more functional area for all of us to create less strain, I would like to see maybe some
suggestions made. I'm sure they've made in the past but consider some things in the
budget. We don't have to do it all at one time but over the next period of years, if we're
gonna stay here for the next, however many years, think about doing these things.
Because I know that if it bothers me coming in from the outside, I think, people just get
used to it but I don't really think the staff and people like yourself; we shouldn't have to.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you. Mr. Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Mr. Chair. You know. . .piggy backing on Jo Anne's
comment on the furniture. I think from some of these department stores we can
probably get something donated to the County that's of much better quality then what,
you know, I see back there. But anyway, just that comment on that subject. But my
real question was paper. How, how can we. . .what, what have you been doing to,

- 37 -

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui
March 28, 2001

through OCS, to take measures to conserve paper? I know Charmaine had a concern
about paper, too. So, you know, we just have a thing about so many trees being killed,
you know, how can we improve our efficiency in that area?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: (Chuckle).
MR. FUKUOKA: That is a really big question.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Keep it in three minutes, Ken.
ALL: (Laughter).
MR. FUKUOKA: Well, let me, let me answer it this way. We, we recognize that over the last
couple of years, you know, there's been a lot of, especially, over the last couple of years
and maybe, you know, a few years before that, there's been a lot of concern about too
many documents. Council Members receiving too many documents; killing too many
trees. Um. . .there is and, and we have tried to address that in different procedures, you
know, trying to eliminate copies; trying to post things instead of making copies for the
Member's offices; trying to cutback on the xeroxing of attachments to letters, uh, things
like that. So, I, I kind of. . .believe, it should be addressed and the way we're, we're,
we're addressing it, which is to deal with incremental improvements. Doing it on a
marginal basis, you know, as they come up, as we identify savings. The, the tension in,
in from a policy perspective is between. . .the time that's spent avoiding the xeroxing
and then the xeroxing costs itself. There are ways, of course, to eliminate xeroxing by
spending more time, making sure that the paper is in the right place. So, there is this
balance that ends up being struck. Also there is a balance that's struck between the
allocation of resources to. . .tracking the pieces of paper as they going through it,
through, through the process. And the, on, on one hand, you know, you're spending
time doing that and then, on the other hand, though, what, what you're trying to do is
have a reliable delivery of this service without taking a lot of time to do it. And
sometimes, to get that reliable delivery of that paper to the Member, the easiest way to
do it is just drop it in the machine and xerox it one more time and then get it to the
Member's office. To do, to do it the other way requires more time to be spent tracking
the individual pieces of paper. Now, that doesn't mean that we struck the right balance
and that's what I meant earlier when I said that, we have to consistently continue to look
at possibilities for, for improvement. But our, from the staff level up until now, our
greatest fear, actually; from the standpoint of documents, is that a member will say, well
why did I receive this? So, we have multiple ways, you know, sometimes we send 'em
through, we send information through their GroupWise but then we find out not all
members manage to get to their GroupWise, their email before they hit the meeting.
Sometimes, you know, the, the document is dropped in the tray but the member doesn't
get a hold of it before the member comes to the meeting. It's not, it's not anybody's
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fault. The question is how much does the system do to, to compensate for those things
that happen. From our standpoint, you know, we want the system to be always
bulletproof because we don't want a member to be at a meeting and say, where's the
paper. But, on the other hand, there is a cost to doing that, the cost is in xeroxing or
tracking it. And so, you know, I, I guess, I don't have an easy answer, other than, I think
that we're doing the best that we can and we're willing to consider, try out new ways of
doing it.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Well, I have one suggestion here. . .high tech; can we
put items such as, you know, large attachments on say, CD-ROM?
MR. FUKUOKA: Urn. . .you mean for distribution to the Members?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah. You know, we all have computers and I'm, I'm just
throwing that out at you, you know, what the feasibility would be regarding to do that.
Because I can see a lot of paper being saved. But, I understand the importance too of
having hard copy along with that but maybe as an option to look into.
MR. FUKUOKA: Yeah,. . .um. . .that's something that gets into the, the area of, of imaging in a
document, dig..., I think, you talked about it, digitizing documents. There are a lot of
costs that aren't seen when we do things like that. I'm not saying that it isn't the right
thing to do or that. . .the idea is not something that's coming but there are a lot of costs
that are involved. One, one thing, is somebody has to scan it in. . .um. . .once it's
scanned in, it has to reviewed; checked, to make sure that's it properly scanned in.
Then. . .to me, you know, it, it, it wouldn't be that necessary to put it on a CD because if
you have it on the LAN; you hook it up, you hook your computer to the LAN, you can
draw it down anytime. But, from a user experience side, some ways it's better, you
know, when you have a document done that way, if you do it in certain ways, you might
be able to find passages more quickly. On the other hand, sometimes it's hard to plow
through a document screen by screen, it's a lot easier to look at a book and flip pages.
So, you know, I mean, there's, there's factors like that that have to be considered. We
have kind of like another reason to get into digitizing documents and that is we just have
a lot of paper that has to be stored, that has to be retrieved. And so,. . .what we want to
do is to, to start the process of getting familiar with these sorts of systems so that we
can get to the point where we can reduce the paper. But, it's gonna take a lot of work,
you know, it, it, it's not, it's not like. . .it's easy to, to have like a laptop and to be able to
review all of your documents on the laptop; it's more difficult than just that.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Thank you, Mr. Molina. Ms. Tavares?
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COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yes, thank you. Can I take Wayne's question, too?
(Chuckle). Urn. . .1, I think we can talk about these kinds of things, you know, every time
the budget comes up we talk about it. I, I would suggest that we actually form some
focus groups. And one of 'em being improvements to the Chamber or the eighth floor
and the other one, we can call 'em the tree huggers group and we can get together and
talk about ways that we can reduce paper. And the staff has been working on ways of
reducing paper, I mean, now, we don't get every annual report that's ever given to us.
Just a little notice comes out, these reports are in the Chair's office if you want to look at
'em, go down there, that has saved a lot of paper, just in that. I think, also, that when
we talk about ADA compliance stuff or, or improvements for this floor, we can discuss
them in more detail when we get to the CIP. Because, I think,. . .you know, when I was
asking the "loaded" questions during another meeting that we had about what do you
see you would improve in this chamber; alluding to different things. But, you know, I
think, we don't have even accommodations for wheelchairs in the back, you know,
people come with wheelchairs they're in the hallway or they're in the, the aisleway,
which I think is against the Fire Code. So, you know, I think, one of the suggestions is
to rip out that last row of chairs and build a platform there for wheelchairs to actually be
part of the audience and not feeling like that extraneous, you know, addition to, to
what's going on here. I mean, I, I have, over the years, had some ideas about it and
noticing lately that we've been using the wall over there for presentations. You know, I
have my binoculars here for a reason because being the farthest one away it's very
hard to see. So, some of those kind of improvements. Maybe if we get together as
either a group or somebody that will spearhead it; the Members can send in
suggestions. And maybe we can meet at it, about it, over a Chair's meeting or
informally or something like that, that we might get farther than just talking about it. For,
I think, five years, since I've been here, we've talked about these improvements and,
and we've got the chairs changed, I think, is the only major thing we've done in here for
five years but it's a big deal. The Members who are new have not had the agonizing
pleasure of sitting through budgets on the chairs we used to have and it was like, you
know, backaches and fatigue set up on us real early. So, I think, if we can do some of
those things perhaps we might be able to get some concrete, concrete things in. And
my, my last item, I wanted to talk about was the, the Member's Office Accounts and ask
the, for consideration to move that amount, you know, up to $90,000. It's 85 something
right now but to move that amount to $90,000. I know that a lot of members are, are
new and they haven't really had the experience of what it's like running an office with a,
the budget that you have. I think, there are some members here who have. . .managed
to, to hire staff that has really helped immensely; not just the individual member, but all
of the Council Members. But the, the way that our office accounts are running, I'm not
able to hire my person fulltime because I can't afford what that person should be paid.
And there's some other members, maybe, that are hesitant about bringing in the kind
of. . .that quality person into their offices. Because they look at their budgets and say,
there's no way that they can pay what a person is gonna ask for doing the kind of work
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that we might be demanding as individuals. I think moving our accounts up to 90,000
will help; won't totally solve the problem. And as a, as a caveat or a requirement for
this, I would not personally mind that we have a qualification, minimum qualifications for
people who are going to be paid at a salary step. You know, how our salary steps go?
You know, I would, I would even, I would agree to having anybody who's gonna be
placed on H or higher, should meet some kind of minimum qualifications before they're
paid at that rate. I, I think that would make it easier for everyone. And, you know, we
certainly don't want to bring, you know, if one--we always have this problem where if
someone brings in somebody and pays them a certain rate--`cause we can place
anybody along that scale from A through L; however we see fit, as long as our monies,
our budgets can handle it, our individual budgets. So, there, there's room for certain
abuses in there, not saying that any have occurred but there always is the rumor saying,
well, you can pay me the top salary, how come you don't? But if we had some
minimum qualifications in there, before someone could go beyond step H, then I think
we would be able to justify why some people are being paid A through G and other
people are gonna be paid H through L. And I, I, you know, I think that would be a good
way for us to kind of control, control the budgets on what we pay people based on their
qualifications in our own offices. And I'll just throw that out for members for discussion
and for consideration. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you, Ms. Tavares. Mr. Arakawa?
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: I sort of been trying to avoid some of the, bringing up some
of the past issues but since we're talking about 'em. You know, earlier on I brought in
the proposal to try and reduce some of the configuration here so that we can wire and
put laptops on our desks and work out of here. To try and create a new projection area
so that we can actually have the projector working on that wall. And, perhaps, getting
some greenery for this room, you know, even if it's artificial at least it will look better;
those kinds of things. But I think, you know, I've had discussion with, you and staff, and
that should suffice how you put it in your budget, how you're gonna work with it. That's
something that you've discussed with the Council Chair, so I'm not gonna get into it in
this Council, on this discussion. I think, I've had my discussion on that already and I do
think we need to upgrade a lot of those systems. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Mr. Arakawa. Mr. Carroll? Thank you. Ms. Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I, I don't really have anything else. Other than to kind of,
being the new person on the block, look at. . .what I'm looking at. Just even on the
outside, as a, as a business person, to get good qualified people who are asked to do
the kinds of things, even, I look at Council Services and I look at the qualifications of
other Staff Members, it's really hard. And I, I'd be the last person to complain about my
salary because we knew what it was going in, too. And I think that the general public
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feels that if you're going to be a dedicated staff person, you're gonna be dedicated to
anything and do a good job, you want to be rewarded for it. And there's some
wonderful staff people-CHAIR HOKAMA: Government services is not the place to be (chuckle).
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I know, well, and, and we know that. But I think that
sometimes the, I have to wave the professional services that we as a Council pay for on
the outside and say, well, if you could have a qualified person--I know Wayne has on his
staff somebody that, you know, is a, an attorney. I think that when John Rapacz was
briefly working on Sol's staff, those kind of people with those kinds of qualifications are
not gonna come here and seek jobs at the Council. And I think that if we're gonna
deliver a good quality product to the consumer which is really our constituents, I think
that sometimes we do have to have that, that ability to seek out qualified help. I would
rather pay my staff more than myself because I feel that they're the people that are
giving me the, the background details; they're the ones doing all the digging and the
research. And so, if, if they give me the tools to do a proper job, I feel we're all going to
work more efficiently and more effectively. So, I really echo what Charmaine is saying,
you, you really need to look at what kind of pay scale and what kind of qualifications
we're requiring of the people that are working on our staffs, in order to deliver the best
possible quality service to the individuals in our, in our community. And so, I, I'm all for
looking at that and, however, if we have to, to accommodate in one area, we have to
pinch in another, I'm, I'm also amenable to that. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you. Mr. Molina? Thank you. Mr. Nishiki? Thank you.
Okay, Members, anything else? If not, the, the Chair would--yes, Mr. Arakawa?
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Just one more thing I'd like to briefly mention.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Sure.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Last term, that I was on the Council, we actually had a
Akaku program that was generated from the Council with all the Council Members and I,
I still think that was a good idea. The Mayor has picked up on it and they, they're doing
a weekly pro..., bi-weekly program, and at the same time, we don't, you know, we don't
budget for it. Last time, what I did was I started it out of my office account, by virtue of
the fact that the Council didn't want to do it, and then after that, the Council picked it up
as part of the Council program. I still think we need to have a, a PR person. You'll
notice the coverage that we have from the media is very weak and a lot of the issues
that we're discussing doesn't make it to the media except. . .by accident, almost. And I,
I really think we need to have a lot better coverage on a lot of the issues that we're
bringing. Because when people come in and testify, you know, a lot of, a lot of times
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we're hearing when we go out in the community or I'm hearing; oh, we didn't know
anything about that, oh,. . .that passed, what happened? And I, I think that's a very
weak point we have with this Council and a lot of the issues that we're bringing forth just
aren't making it to the public. So, I'll just make that pitch. I don't. . .I'm not gonna
propose putting it into Ken's budget 'cause I've done that in the past and the Council, as
a rule, is gonna have to decide whether or not they really want to have this coverage or
not.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Arakawa. Yes, Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Mister, Mr. Chair, is it your intention for us to make changes
now to this budget?
CHAIR HOKAMA: No.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: No.
CHAIR HOKAMA: No.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: On the second round or.. .
CHAIR HOKAMA: Second round. We can start from the second round. This one, I just would
like you to use to.. .
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Information.
CHAIR HOKAMA: . . .start thinking.. .
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: . . .what you want, want to consider, where you might to add? The, the
Chair highly recommends, though, that you also look where you want to cut. . :cause I
think we can reduce the total amount. Personally, the Chair is looking at cutting at least
14 million, myself. . .and that does not mean Lanai doesn't get it's fair share of.. .
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: (Chuckle).
CHAIR HOKAMA: . . .funds reduced. Yes, Charmaine.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah. Did you get an answer from. . .1 saw somebody run
and give you a note. . .on the, Ken, you. (Chuckle).
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MR. FUKUOKA: Me? Yeah.. .
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: On the costs? (Chuckle).
MR. FUKUOKA: Thank you. Yeah. Urn. . .1 didn't even see her. But, Frances told me or at
least Michele claims that Frances came down and told me-COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: I saw here. (Chuckle).
MR. FUKUOKA: --that, that the legislative gifts were 2550, $2,550 and one half of the dinner
cost; that reception cost was 2,777. And if I, if I may? You know, at the risk of-CHAIR HOKAMA: Ken, say that again, please.
MR. FUKUOKA: The dinner cost, you know, that legislative-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Right.
MR. FUKUOKA: --reception cost. One half of the cost, which is our share, was 2,777.
CHAIR HOKAMA: The dinner was $5,400?
MR. FUKUOKA: Well, that includes. . .just everything; beverages, yeah, and food.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Excluding the members-MR. FUKUOKA: Excluding the travel.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --travel and housing and transportation?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah, excluding that.
MR. FUKUOKA: Yeah, this was. . .Legislators and Staff, right?
CHAIR HOKAMA: That's correct.
MR. FUKUOKA: Yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, Charmaine.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Uh. . .did you say the Mayor, Mayor's office split both of those
costs with us?
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MR. FUKUOKA: No.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Just, just the dinner one?
MR. FUKUOKA: Yeah, they did.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah, I thought they did the gifts too, yeah?
MR. FUKUOKA: Oh, I'm sorry, they did.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: So, then the, the gifts alone would have been 5,000 and the
dinner would have been close to 6,000. Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: We need clarification from. . .(Inaudible). . .
CHAIR HOKAMA: We'll, we'll, we'll get that in writing. I want that in writing.
MR. FUKUOKA: Yeah, urn, sorry. I just got clarification. On the legislative gifts, the total
costs was 2,550 of which half was reimbursed by the Mayor's office, I mean, it was
shifted over; taken care of, I guess, by the Mayor's office. Urn. . .on the dinner; that
2,777 is one half of the total cost.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you very much.
MR. FUKUOKA: Oh, and if I may? You know, just real briefly. Urn. . .a lot of these facilities
issues on the eighth floor are not things, you know, there are things that we, we go and
even get quotes for. I think the carpeting for this Chamber, we recently had to get
quotes and. . .but in the end, I think, those are things that the Members would do well to
speak with the Chair about, the Council Chair. 'Cause in the end, you know, it's the
Chair that makes the call on those decisions. I think, he's been. . .conservative, you
know, on, in his spending and he's. . .he keeps, he keeps reminding me of the
legislature and the cost that they were criticized for when they renovated. But, I think, it
may mean something if you folks could talk with him about it.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Alright. Thank you.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you for that, Ken. Okay, Members, any other questions at
this time for Ken? If not, I will ask that you put forward your request to the Committee
Staff for transmittal for Mr. Fukuoka for research and response. Other than that the
Chair is gonna break `til 1:30 unless you folks have an objection to that?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: No sir. (Chuckle).
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: (Chuckle).
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: I object.
ALL: (Laughed).
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Just kidding.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, Members, we'll be in recess %I 1:30. . . .(gavel). . .
RECESS: 11:28 a.m.
RECONVENE: 1:33 p.m.
.(gavel). . . The Committee on Budget and Finance will reconvene.
CHAIR HOKAMA:
Members, just as an announcement, Mr. Kane has informed the Committee that he is
on his way to Honolulu attending some hearings at the State Capitol representing the
Council on a couple of issues. So, hopefully, we'll have a. ..productive report back from
Mr. Kane. This afternoon, Members, may I direct you to the schedule. We have the
Department of Planning and present today is Director John Min. Before we start,
Budget Director, any opening comments?

MS. YOSHIMURA: No comments.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you. Members, Mr. Min.
DEPARTMENT OF PLANNING

MR. MIN: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Chairman, and Members of the Committee. Good afternoon.
Do you have a copy of my handout? I'll walk through this as quickly as I can. In terms
of general responsibilities, our Department is. . .is involved in preparing updates to the
General Plan and the Community Plans every ten years. We administer and enforce
the comprehensive zoning ordinance and provisions of State law regarding shoreline
setback and special management area. We process a number of other development
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applications; change in zoning, special use permit and so forth. We provide staff
support to nine Boards and Commissions: we have the three Planning Commissions;
we have the Cultural Resources Commission; Urban Design Review Board; Board of
Variances and Appeals; The Maui Redevelopment Agency; Hana Advisory Committee
to the Planning Commission and the Napili Bay Civic Improvement District Advisory
Committee. We also participate in a number of other Federal, State and County
planning studies, as necessary and the Department advises both the Mayor and the
Council on planning related matters. Our Department is organized in two Divisions, we
have a Planning Division and the Zoning Administration and Enforcement Division. In
terms of staffing, we have 32 equivalent positions, within that, we have one vacancy
which occurred a little less than a month ago and we will be recruiting for that position,
that's in our Zoning Administration Division. We are currently, recruiting two LTA
positions that were approved by the Council in the supplemental budget; this is for a
Cartographic Drafting Tech. and a Clerk Typist III. This is in conjunction with the Digital
Mapping Project that's currently underway and we have one frozen position which is the
Planning Program Administrator position. In terms of Grant Revenues, we have two
sources of grant revenues; one, being the CZM program and for Fiscal Year 2002, we
are expecting 200 thou..., $201,067 from this grant, this comes from, through the State
Office of Planning. Certified Local Government Grant; this is in conjunction with our
Cultural Resources Commission and the work of that group. We get funds for
this. . .from this grant every other year. So, this fiscal year we're not receiving any, any
grant revenues. Special projects; just to note some of the projects that since 1999 to
2000 that we have started and completed. We worked out a Kaanapali Beach
Management Plan; Wailuku Redevelopment Plan, which this Council adopted; Lanai
Comprehensive Rezoning, which the Council adopted, and the revisions to the Lahaina
Town sign design guidelines. Currently, we have a number of projects on going, we're
working with the Maui Redevelopment Agency on the adoption of a small town code for
Wailuku Town. We're working on an Upcountry Greenway Masterplan. . .we hope to
complete that this year. We're also working with the Maui Planning Commission on
revisions to their shoreline setback rules. We're working on revisions to Title 19,
Comprehensive Zoning Ordinance including an Open Space District and some
housekeeping proposals. We are continuing our compliance review of Bed and
Breakfast operations and this relates to discussions that we had with this Committee,
last year and we have been going through the. . .various listings to identify bed and
breakfast operations. We think, we've identified most of them in Urban District and we
have sent out letters to these operators who do not have permits either filed or
approved and requested that they submit the necessary applications. We are
continuing that review in, in our other areas; Ag and Rural areas as well. The KIVA
Tracking System, we're participating in this, this is one of the SERV initiatives and we
use the KIVA system extensively in our office along with Land Use and Codes. And the
functions of this system are being expanded to include. . .the tracking of complaints.
So, we are actively participating in that. We are in the process of gearing up for the
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General Plan Update Program and finally, we are participating in the Digital Mapping
Project or the GIS Development Project. We have two of our staff people who have
been assigned to be on that project team and they'll be working on
this. . .- (CHANGE OF TAPE) --. . .uh. . .18 months, to hopefully complete our, our
mapping and our data base for the various community plan regions. In terms of
development applications. . .um. . .just to recap some of the, the number of applications
and reviews that our Department has undertaken since Fiscal Year '98. Back in
Fiscal Year '98, we reviewed about eighty..., eighty..., 8,700 applications; in Fiscal Year
`99 that went up to 11,457 and in Fiscal Year 2000, it was up to about 12,700. We get a
lot of public inquiries in our office. What is the zoning for my property? Uh. . .you know
what, you know, what can I do within this zoning district? Just a lot of customer service
involvement and in Fiscal Year 1998, we accounted for about 5,600 public inquiries; in
Fiscal Year '99 that increased to 7,900 and in Fiscal Year 2000, that increased to 8,900.
In terms of our departmental requests that's before you, I'm looking at our Department
summary and that, I didn't include it with my handout but it's, it's, hopefully, is in your
budget packet. It's a department summary for our Department and I wanted to just
highlight some of the major changes that are being requested. The first, is in terms of
Personnel Expansion and this is found on Page 15-4, I'm sorry, not 15-4, I think, it's
15-. . .sorry, 15-3. Under Expansion. . .um. . .we have a, we have four positions that
we've identified, first position, is the Cartographic Drafting Technician position. This is
the LTA position that was approved through the supplemental budget. We would like to
continue that for the next fiscal year and this, again, is in conjunction with our
Digital Zoning Project. Clerk Typist III, again, that's related to the LTA position for the
Digital Zoning Project, we, again, would like to continue that. We're requesting a new
Planner position; Planner V position, that we would like to assign to Special/Long Range
Planning and also a Clerk Typist III that would also be assigned to Special/Long Range
Planning. There's an error in the sheet here, it says that under No. 4, Clerk Typist III is
for the Digital Zoning, that should be changed and it should be for the Special/Long
Range Planning. One of the functions that we. . .um. . .believe we need to perform and,
and do more of is long/range planning. And the request for this additional staff; a
planner and a clerk typist, fits in with the. . .upcoming update of the General Plan and
subsequent updates of our community plans but also would provide dedicated staff to
working on various special or long/range planning projects. There are number of
projects that our Department is involved in, be it Federal agencies, State agency, other
County agencies, as well as the community. And I think it's, it's very important in this
day and age that we have a Long/Range Planning Unit within our Department. The
Long/Range Planning, the Planning Department had a Long/Range Planning Division,
and I believe around 1997, the division was dissolved, and the staff that were part of
that Division were incorporated into the Planning Division. And most of the staff were
assigned permit work or development application work. So, the function of long/range
planning was, you know, again, dissolved and, and most of the staff just did regular,
regular permit review. I think, it's important that we reestablish a long/range planning
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function within the Department, I think, there's more than enough work to justify these
additional staff. Moving along, I'd like to just highlight a few other major changes in our
budget. On Page 15-4, under Services, we have an increase in professional services.
Last year, we had an appropriation of 122,500. . .yes, I'm in the, urn, in the Department
summary.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: . . .(Inaudible). . .
MR. MIN: Is that. . .okay. Budget, okay. Again, looking at the budget details for the
Department of Planning, Page 15-4. . . .(Pause). .. And, there's, under Services,
there's a line item, Professional Services. Fiscal year, the last fiscal year, we were
appropriated 122,500. We are requesting an increase to 292,500. The reason for the
increase is to. . .accommodate the update of some of our design guidelines. The
Wailuku Town redevelopment area; for example, the design guidelines that are adopted
are for a much smaller area and in the updated redevelopment plan the boundaries
have been considerably expanded for the redevelopment area. And it's important that
we establish design guidelines for the new areas to maintain. . .a set of, the design
character of the area which is one of the objectives for Wailuku Town. In addition to
that, these funds are used for Hearing Officers, Hearing Officer fees and court reporter
fees, which are for our contested case hearings. We also have provisions in the Maui
Planning Commission rules, which provide for mediation before we get into a contested
case. So, these. . .professional services would also cover that. Okay. Moving along to
Page 15-6, it's a line item. This is the General Plan Update. We are requesting
300,000 as an appropriation for our general plan update program. The thought here is
that the, we would use the monies to. . .update our land use forecast and also to update
our infrastructure and public facility assessment for the. . .major growth areas of the
County. So that, the, the purpose of, of those funds are for those studies. And finally,
on Page 15-7, under. . .Administration, we have a surplus or replacement 4x4 vehicle.
One of our inspectors is using a 1990 Bronco with about 85,000 miles, we're
experiencing maintenance problems and I think that the vehicle should be replaced.
Those are the major highlights of the budget and I'd be happy to answer any questions.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you very much, Mr. Min. This afternoon we'll start with the subject
matter chairperson, Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Thank you. Can you explain a little bit about, you know, on
your handout on Page 3, your Personnel Expansion.
MR. MIN: Okay.
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COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: When you have the parenthesis there with the LTA; the
limited term appointment, are you asking for it again to be a limited term appointment or
permanent this time?
MR. MIN: At this point in time, we're asking it to be limited term appointment.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: So, that would be three of them that would be limited term
appointment?
MR. MIN: No, actually there's an error.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Oh, the last one is permanent.
MR. MIN: Yeah, the last one would be permanent and it would be, that position would be
assigned to Special Long/Range Planning.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay. Thank you. And is that for a year then. . .the, the
limited term?
MR. MIN: Yes. Yes. Urn. . .yeah, it is for a year.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Do you see them finishing that digital mapping in a year?
MR. MIN: I hope so. I, I talked to Walle recently and just asked her how things are going.
Realistically, it may not be 100 percent complete but I think they'll be substantially
complete in their work, that's the indication I get.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay. So, is Walle doing that now for you folks?
MR. MIN: Yes. There's a project team, which has been set up to do this.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay.
MR. MIN: Consisting of Walle, Walle Landenberger, Robyn Loudermilk; who's a Planner in our
Department, and one of our Clerk Typists, Maka Pico. So, they're part of that project
team and they're working exclusively on that Digital Mapping Project.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Mr. Arakawa.
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COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Yeah, just to stay in that same area, at this point. Now,
when the Management Director came down and, and Bill and Walle's position had been
transferred to management. Now, I'm seeing that they're doing, essentially, the same
type of work combining up with the Planning Department. Now, who exactly is doing
what with, with this, the, the GIS and all, all of this new information? Because it seems
like there's a duplication of funding-MR. MIN: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: --being requested from management, as well as, from your
Department. And, again, I see it as a duplication, so can you explain that?
MR. MIN: Okay. Well, first of all, Bill and Walle are part of the GIS Division which is under the
Managing Director. Okay, and the GIS work that they formally did in the Planning
Department is now being done through that division. Okay. The two LTA positions are
basically replacement positions. We have a need in our department for a Cartographic
Drafting Tech. because a lot of our documents are maps. Whenever a zoning
amendment is adopted, you know, we need to amend our maps; we need to record it;
we need to index it; we need to keep tracks of our maps. So, the purpose of the
cartographic drafting tech. is to handle that day to day work which Walle used to do.
Okay. Um. . .the clerk typist position, which is identified as an LTA position, you know,
is to replace the staff that we have. . .assigned temporarily to the Digital Mapping
Project. And so, the LTA position for the Clerk Typist III will be to do. . .the work that the
clerk typist was doing before, in terms of, clerical support in our Planning Division.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: That's sort of addressing part of it but there seems to be
duplication, as far as, request for funding for the project. In, in the GIS, when Bill was
making an explanation, they were gonna go out and get the aerial photographs and they
were going to be, they're requesting funding for that. And what you're doing with. . .1
guess with Walle, in this particular case, as part of the GIS, isn't that overlapping?
MR. MIN: Um. . .1 don't believe it is. First of all, Walle, again, is part of the GIS Division and
she is working. . .she's a member of a project team which includes two people from our
Department working exclusively on this digital mapping project. Okay, and that project
is. . .is, in a sense, divorced from the normal day to day operations of our Department.
Okay, it's a special project. Walle is, is heading that up and I have no. . .day to day
supervision or any kind of oversight of that project, they're working exclusively on that.
Currently, in our Department, we don't have anybody who is doing the kind of GIS work
that Bill and Walle were doing. Okay. However, there is a need for a Cartographic
Drafting Tech., somebody who can, can do the mapping work that Walle used to do
before. She doesn't have the time anymore to provide that service to our Department.
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COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Okay. I'll talk to you, I'll talk to him later, 'cause I'm still
seeing an overlap in the, the actual project itself and I need to clarify it but I'll talk to him
later.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Mr. Arakawa. Mr. Carroll.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL:
Thank you, Chair.
On the Planner V, for the
Special Long/Range Planning. We've been talking about long/range planning for a long
time. No community, that I know of, ever got it right the first time and now, we're in the
same position that everybody else is. . .is trying to make it right now, by getting into long
term planning. It doesn't seem like one Planner and one Clerk Typist are gonna be able
to reach the goals that, I think, the community and this Council are hoping to achieve. It
would seem like, it would take at least two Planners in order to be effective. I hate to
see us have somebody in there but they're not able to attain the goals that we are going
to set for them and the community is gonna set for them because they just can't do it by
themselves. And I would like to hope that. . .we would put in the budget another
planner but how do you feel about that?
MR. MIN: Okay. In terms of our Department assignments, I do have two other people that are
working on what I would consider special planning, long/range planning. John
Summers, has been working primarily on Wailuku Town Redevelopment, he's also
working on our Title 19 code revisions. Daren Suzuki, has recently been reassigned to
work on Special and Long/Range Planning. He's, right now, primarily working on
coming up with an overall program for our General Plan Update. Okay. I'm hoping with
the additional position that there will be at least three Planners and with a clerical
support, I think, that will provide. . .you know, the unit, to be able to handle the day to
day work of that section. So, the additional position that I'm asking for is to supplement
the two people that are currently assigned to doing long/range work.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: So, you feel that's sufficient?
MR. MIN: At this point and time, you know, as, maybe in the coming fiscal ye..., next fiscal
year, you know, it maybe a little different as we get into some other, you know,
programs. But at this point and time, I think, with the three. . .1 think, we can manage,
we can get the programs going and, and to be very frank, I'm very comfortable with that.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: If you're comfortable with it, I'll let it go but I don't want to see
a bottleneck over here when we getting into the actual more nitty-gritty stuff.
MR. MIN: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: That's all for now.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Carroll. Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes, John, thanks for coming today.
MR. MIN: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Looking at all the issues that we're trying to deal with right
now, I, I kind of echo what Bob is saying that I'm really concerned about all the work
that's ahead of us. And I'm wondering if the option that could be considered is some of
the things that have been done in other jurisdictions. Such as, over a ten-year period,
I'm just looking at the population growth in Maui County alone. We've gone up over, I
guess, from 1990 to 2000 on the last census, 27.6 percent in terms of our population. I
look at the number of applications that from 1998 to 2000 that were actually--and a
percentage basis, what we're really increasing, and that's just over two years. If, if I
were to even just assume that the same number of applications were incurred in the
year 1990, and let's say, take 8,714 applications apply the same 27 percent increase in
growth. We'd be looking at 11,066 applications to process if, if you're equating it to
population growth. And what I'm trying to figure out is. . .our applications are coming in
far, far faster then the population is actually increasing. And, I think, it's due to the shift
that we're seeing in peaks and valleys, where you have a development "boom" and then
you have a development "bust." Is there any way that your Department can actually
take the statistical information that were given out there and come up with some kind of
a manageable level, in terms of the types of applications that you process that we can
really accommodate? Because I don't think, that we have to accommodate everything
that's coming in. I know other jurisdictions simply don't react, they actually say, well,
okay, this is our quota for this year; this is our quota for following year in these particular
categories. How, how are we gonna be able to deal with that?
MR. MIN:
Yeah, it. . .you know, those kinds of programs, whether you call it a
Growth Management Program; a Smart Growth Program, would be developed in the
context of that effort. You know, we would need to develop a plan that would provide
for. . .ways of. . .evaluating various proposals in relation to infrastructure capacity, you
know, it's typically developed as part of those kinds of programs. You know just looking
at applications per se can be a little deceiving because some of the projects could be
relatively small projects. The major projects, the new developments that are proposed,
those are the ones that from an infrastructure standpoint can be more challenging
because some, some, sometimes agencies haven't really planned for that. But I think to
answer your question. I think, you know, it would be appropriate to look at that in the
context of whether it's a smart growth type of plan or. . .you know, a growth
management plan; however, you call it; however, you term it. You know, that's typically
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how other jurisdictions have, have grappled with that in terms of, in terms of, you know,
your concept.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay, and, and just so I'm understanding what you're saying,
we, we really--I, I know that we don't have sufficient staff, obviously, to handle.
Because, you know, we're just not. . .doing the kind of job or the kind of things that we
should be doing and actually planning. Otherwise, we'd be, we would be able to level
out the peak and the valleys and accommodate, and, you know, know when to shift into
low gear as opposed to trying to tap down high gear. What I'm looking at though is the
same thing that Bob brought up. If we do not have the Planners in here to be able to
accommodate this, I don't want to see a situation where we've got. . .more people
coming in and then now, they're just used to process applications again and facilitate
other stuff. So-MR. MIN: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: --I, I want to know how we're gonna specifically target and
just say, these only, the only function that these people are gonna accommodate is the
responsibility that we're charging them with.
MR. MIN: Yeah. Well, again, you know, my plan is to assign this planner and the clerical to
the Long/Range Special Planning Section, okay, that's my intention. I've been working
within the Department to begin to establish that unit. Urn. . .you know, that's, again, just
my personal commitment to doing that. . .um. . .you know, I, you know, I believe, very
firmly that we have to do more special and long/range planning, it's just absolutely
critical. And I think our staff under..., understands that and as difficult as it may be for
some of them because of their workload, I think, they can understand the bigger picture
and they appreciate the need. So, you know, all I can say is that from my standpoint as,
you know, as the, you know, Director of the Department, I'm committed to having that
planner assigned exclusively for that purpose and that's my comment.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay, well, you know, I, I just want to make sure that-MR. MIN: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: --when I'm looking at this and I really believe that we need
exactly what you're saying. I want to make certain that we have the people in the
proper positions so that we can guarantee to the public that we're not gonna
continuously face the same things year after year that we, we're all facing now. And
having said that could I ask one more (chuckle) thing? The, the other thing that I'm
really looking at is also, possibly, Special Projects. Where we don't actually have to put
a body in there but if there is a particular thing. I'm looking at the carrying capacity
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study or I'm looking at gathering data to find out what other smart growth initiatives exist
in other places, maybe things that are really more targeted to a specific timeline. Is
there room in the budget to allow for that type of flexibility also where we could assign
people just on a project specific basis?
MR. MIN: Well, I think, it depends on the. . .scope and nature of the special project. Let me
give an example, the Wailuku Town Redevelopment Plan was done by the Planning
Department, principally, by John Summers our Staff Planner almost fulltime. We didn't
have any consulting money, we didn't have any professional services money that we
could free up to hire a consultant. But, because we believe that it was a very important
effort, we dedicated staff almost fulltime for a period of about 9 to 12 months, actually to
work on this. So, again, it kind of depends on what the nature of the request is. Your
comment about data collection, I think, is. . .right on target. One of my frustrations is
that we have so much data floating out there but just to pull together it, it takes some
time and effort and we have to be able to sit down and, and dedicate time to doing that.
And I think it's very important, as a starting point for all of us to understand, you know,
where we are, and, you know, what some of the demands might be. And to share that
data so that as, you know, public officials we can, you know, we can make the best
decisions and have good information. I think, frankly, that's one of the big deficiencies
of our Department, currently, that we are not compiling that kind of data in a manner
that's useful for decision making, for analysis and I think we should be doing that. And,
I think, that's part of the program that I see in the Special Planning, Long/Range
Planning Section.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Thanks very much, John.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Ms. Johnson. Mr. Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Thanks, Mr. Chair. John, you know, there's been a lot
of concerns expressed out in the community about the role of the Planning Department.
What improvements, you know, have you made in the Planning Department or have you
seen occur regarding things like the permit process? And how do you see the addition
of, you know, the personnel that you're requesting for addressing this and other
concerns within the Department?
MR. MIN: Okay. Well, again, the personnel that's being requested, two of the positions would,
essentially, be to replace positions that, you know, have been lost, you know, through
reassignment of the, you know, in, in as part of the Digital Mapping Project. The
Planner V and the Clerk Typist III would be for Special and Long/Range Planning and
would be dedicated to that effort. In terms of permit processing, we have tried to do a
few things to make it a little simpler. But, quite frankly, the process today and, and it's
true, I think, over time, the processes that we have get inherently more complicated.
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Part of it, a large part of it is the issues that we have to deal with today. Some of the
traffic issues and some of the mitigative measures that; for example, the Planning
Commission considers are a lot more difficult to grapple with. And. . .but there are a lot
of efforts in the area of. . .traffic or transportation. . .improvements; for example, the
Mayor's Committee, Transportation Action Committee is, is, is one effort to try to come
up with some immediate solutions. There, there are other committees underway to also
address that transportation issue. But in terms of processing, given the number of
applications we have and, and some of these applications are, we have no control; for
example, over contested case hearings. If somebody files a petition to intervene, the
processing of that application will be affected. Normally, when we receive an
application, we forward it to various agencies for review and comment. You know, we
do experience delays by certain agencies in getting their comments back and if it's a
critical agency, we don't proceed to the public hearing until we get those comments.
Because, we know that if we don't address that up front there are gonna be potential
problems at the time of the public hearing. So, the, you know, getting all the different
agency comments can take some time, we're talking about Federal, State and, you
know, other County agencies. When those, when those comments come in, the
applicants are then asked to comment and respond to issues raised by those agencies.
Sometimes it can be done quickly, sometimes they may have to do some additional
study or additional work or analysis before they can adequately respond to that. We
generally try to get an application to public hearing within four months. Okay, at one
time, a number of years ago, we were able to get it to the, to public hearing in about two
and half to three months but I think the times are different and I think the, some of the
issues that we have to deal with take a little, a little bit more time. Okay, I think in, in, in
light of the. . .increased workload that. . .are reflected in, in the number of applications, I
think, we have tried with the staff that we have but we haven't, you know, really
increased our staff. We have tried to manage that workload to the best, you know, of
our ability and I think we're still within the general timeframe that's, that's reasonable.
Again, the more difficult ones, the contested cases, that's gonna take time, we don't
have any control over that. So, I guess, to answer your question, you know, given the
increase in work, I think, we have tried to, with the staff that we have, process the
requests as efficiently as we can. Um. . .and I think for the most part, you know, again,
we've just given it our best effort.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah, I asked that because along the lines of Bobs' asking you,
you know, is this enough personnel-MR. MIN: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: --for you to adequately get the job done. So, that's. . .1 just
want to, want to make sure.
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MR. MIN: Yeah, again, I think, in terms of staffing, you know, what we're asking for today is
what we think, you know, we'll need for the coming fiscal year. I can't say what the
situation will be a year from now when we come back but, again, looking at our program
over the coming year, I think, what we're asking for is, is what we need.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you. Mr. Nishiki.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah. I, I, I, I want to follow along the lines of Jo Anne in
regards to what Planning really is, John. You say you want to do long term planning
and I, I think the frustration, right now, and I'll stick directly to the Kihei, Makena, Wailea
area. Is we have ordinances that talk about concurrency, infrastructure concurrency
and we talk about planning, we, we, we, we, we see what has happened and, and now
we're reacting. And personally, I, I, I think, that this Planning Department is basically
using your planners to issue more permits; there is no planning involved. And, and I, I
want to say that there are many things on the books that have not really occurred which
is frustrating for me as I watch the amount of shoreline developments that are occurring
in that area, specifically. And, and, and one has to be. . .in 15-3 you said that you're
going to. . .no, it's not in 15-3, I think, you mentioned about working on the new SMA
setback. Here it is, on Page De..., De..., De..., Departmental. . .what is this called?
Whatever you, you, you, you submitted to us.
MR. MIN: It's on Page 2.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah, Page 2 in progress-MR. MIN: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: --under Special Planning projects. . .revisions to shoreline
setback rules. And, John, you know, all I need to do is walk across the street, from
where I live, and start walking Keawekapu and I've seen innumerable single-family
homes that are coming up in that area. And then we go farther down and we see more
along the shoreline where. . .up towards Makena side we see more homes coming in,
up in that area. And because the shoreline setback rules have not been. . .made
stringent or has setback, these people are, again, right against the shoreline. Then I
look at, as these developments are occurring, I look at, wow, I walk again and I go,
wow, no new access points for the public to, to get into these developments now. So,
here we go again. . .permits given out, Mr. Chairman,. . .minor SMA's, major SMA's; I
don't know how many and I want to know how many minor, how many major SMA's
have been given out in this area? There is no planning and, and Kihei and Wailea and
Makena are going through exactly what--and the same mistakes that we've made in
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Kaanapali--and it's gonna happen in East Maui, if we don't start getting anything done.
But, John, it just seems to me that all you're doing with your planners is saying, give 'em
the permits. And surely, the numbers that you have brought up in, in, in which you are
giving us the reason why, the justification for more hiring of planners, is there. But when
you look at what you call smart planning or what you may call. . .1 don't know long/range
planning, I, I, I, I just look at even what we have right now in infrastructure, the, the
Concurrency Law. I see zero. I see an embarrassing situation. . .happening right now
in Wailea, Kihei, and, and Makena, John. And so, you know, you're the, you're the
Chief Honcho. You know, you tell us put in streets; give us more water, so we can give
more permits and that's the gist of what I see occurring, Mr. Chairman. And I'm really
embarrassed because, now, I've been in public service for what, 20 years, almost, and
yet, continuously I've seen different planners come in and yet, nothing occurring despite
that we may initiate laws. What's the delay in SMA rules? Are we really creating more
public access as we see shoreline development occurring? I mean, full on, John. All
you need to do is have to walk from where I live, by Mana Kai, and walk along the
Keawekapu shoreline right there. And I can tell you I've seen one, two, three, four, five
six, seven, eight, nine, ten, eleven, twelve, thirteen new residences before we hit
Wailea. . .and, and, and, and, and, and, and as close as they can. I mean, can you
explain? Is that what you're giving instructions to your planners, that are, now have
engulfed this area with no public, more public accesses that I've seen. And I'd like to
know how many public accesses you've created while all of these permits along the
shoreline have been given? Urn. . .you talking long/range, I, I, I'm talking, right now,
because in the long/range we would have seen that entire place engulfed with
residences and condos and, and, and, and no long/range planning done. There is an
immediacy right now. What we've done is just, again, without being repetitious given
more SMA, giving more building permits in the SMA areas, Mr. Chairman, and nothing
created, as far as I can see, with protection.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Min, you have a comment?
MR. MIN: Just a couple of comments. I think, first of all, in terms of our. . .SMA law, our
Coastal Zone Management Law which is part of Hawaii Revised Statutes Chapter 205A.
Single-family dwellings are exempt from the SMA permit. Okay. There are a number of
single-family dwelling building permit applications that are filed and under the State law
and under the Planning Commission rules, are exempt from a permit requirement. So,
from that standpoint, we do not get involved in the more detailed SMA review then we
would for other applications. In terms of public access, one of the projects that I think
we need to do in our office and this is in conjunction with our mapping, our digital
mapping effort, is we need to identify those areas identified in the various community
plans for public access or for park acquisition and we need to put that on a map. Again,
because many of these projects, if it's a single-family dwelling, you know, we, we don't
get into any detail SMA review. Okay, it's, it's, and so, for public access, in those
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situations, we don't require it. Okay, but I think it's important if there's a new subdivision
that. . .areas that are identified in the community plan as being important for acquisition,
that that information be. . .readily available to staff and to landowners so that they're
aware of what these possible requirements may be. Now, my final comment is
regarding concurrency, in terms of. . .the Water Department or the Public Works
Department, Waste Management Division, in the context of reviewing development
applications, we rely on their comments regarding the adequacy of the infrastructure.
We rely on their comments and recommendations for improvements or recommended
conditions to development approvals to upgrade infrastructure. Concurrency has been
interpreted to be at the time of a building permit. So, at the time of a building permit, if
all the relevant agencies sign off and indicate that there is adequate capacity then
concurrency is determined at that time. Oftentimes, at a change in zoning or an SMA
permit stage, it's difficult for any agency to say, specifically, that they can guarantee
service because they have no idea when that project may go through the building permit
phase. So, at the building permit level is when concurrency is determined. If there is, if
the infrastructure is inadequate a building permit cannot be issued. So, that's sort of my
general comments to, to your comment.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Alright.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Your comment, if infrastructure is not available then a building
permit cannot be given out. So, you, obviously, are telling us that in, in the Wailea,
Kihei, Makena area, infrastructure is adequate, therefore, we can continue to give out
permits. Have you not given out any permits in this area because of the reason that you
just stated, infrastructure is not available?
MR. MIN: Well, in terms of building permits, you know, I'm not aware, personally, of building
permits applications that have not been approved for projects in that area or other areas
because of infrastructure. But.. .
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah, and I, and I thank you for your honesty and this is my
frustration, anyway, despite that it's honest. If I may, Mr. Chairman? And, and, and,
and, John, it's, it's what you just said about, well, we have no control over an SMA
permit when a single-family residence is being built. The SMA law doesn't read and
correct me, Mr. Moto, as I make this statement, if it's not. . .true. That we can create
public accesses the way we feel is necessary. And, and, and, and I don't have the SMA
in front of me, I'm asking my staff to get it but they're a little slow in moving their legs.
But, the, the, the problem is, is that you have--the, the, the, the County has the ability to
create public access when we see it necessary and I, I can't remember the exact
language, John. You've, you've been at this business longer that I have been but I
know I've read. So, it has nothing to do with whether a single-family residence is
coming upon an SMA area, it has to do whether we see it necessary that a public
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access be provided for. I can't remember what the distance is because we see it as
being necessary and why, I tell you this, now, is only because I've seen these mistakes
being made in the past. You, and I, don't mean to chastise you. I, I, I mean to try to
communicate you with my harsh loud voice today but hard up at the same time,
because we're in charge here of this County. This is our home. This is our home.
Other people may come. . .-- (CHANGE OF TAPE) --. . .is our home. And when I have
a home here, I want to make sure the entire community has the ability to have the
access to go to the ocean areas for whatever reason and not be blocked off as it has
been on the west side. And if we don't do it now, it's gonna cost us money, and at the
same time, we as human beings, because now, we see a million dollar residence or
whatever else coming up. I don't think we've got the guts enough because I've never
seen us do at any, through all this Administrations, demand that after the fact, that we
put in beach accesses. And, and, and, and, and the biggest, and the biggest reason
that we hear, many of these people that live in front of their homes, gawk to us because
of it is because, oh, all they do is come and make rubbish or whatever. Well, you know
what, that cannot hold true anymore for this community. And, and, and, and it, and me
seeing now that in the areas where we've got the best beaches and perhaps the best
weather and whatever enmities there are. . .enmities--what is the word?
CHAIR HOKAMA: (Chuckle).
?: Amenities. . .(inaudible). . .
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Amenities. . .amenities, where we have those that, we are not
going to plan, John. I mean. . .you know, we are, we are the leaders.
MR. MIN: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: We are the ones that are setting the footprint. We've learned
already in Honolulu, we've learned on the west side. Now it's this side that is been
inundated by much building. You, I plead with you, I really plead with you. I'll come
down and I'll beg on my knees but I plead with you to start doing the right things.
Because you are in that position to set that, set that framework for us in Maui County on
Wailea, Makena, Kihei side to make sure that we have accesses. You know, and, and,
and that's all I can ask you. You know, I don't know how you're going to do it but you've
accepted the responsibility, take the challenge, and please do it. Please do it. I'm not
going to put any blame on anybody anymore 'cause I, I, I found that that doesn't work.
So, if, if I've gotta KA or whatever, I'll do it that way. You know, I'll do it, I'll kiss your
toes but do it, please. Please, for all of us in this community. And that's all I can say
about whatever you come before us, I think, this is the most important thing that is
gonna be lost in a snap because there's big money coming in right now. You gotta do
it, you gotta work--if, if you tell us leave it alone, that that's me and, and, and the
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Planning Commissioners, well, give 'em good advice. Do it for us in this community.
Once we lose all that access, that's it, we ain't gonna get it back. I just know. I don't
know what to tell you. . .1, I, I, I just-CHAIR HOKAMA: Ask the question.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: I know, yeah, yes, I was gonna say, I need to ask a question but
will you do it for us? Is the question.
MR. MIN: To the extent that within the authorities of our Department, we can require public
access and we have, okay, through the SMA Law, as an example. We do it. We'll do it.
Okay. The Subdivision Code provides for public access and I think the 1,500 feet that
you referred to is in, you know, is in that ordinance. If a project is subject to an SMA
permit, a public access, you know, is, is under consideration relative to that project.
Okay, but we need to have the mechanism; that is from the standpoint of our
Department, we need to have the mechanism to be able to require it. Short of, you
know, other means, which would probably involve this Council, which is, you know,
acquiring public access. But, you know, I, I understand your comment, Wayne, and
your concern and, you know, I share the same concern.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Min, try and. . .tie up what you've been hearing from the
Committee Members in regards to your budget request.
MR. MIN: Okay, well, you know, in conclusion. . .you know, we are asking for a bit more than
we asked for last year; some additional positions. Again, two of these positions would
be for the Digital Mapping Project, which I think is a very important effort, in terms of,
providing a, a good information to decision-makers and the public. I think, it's, it's
gonna revolutionize, it's gonna change the way we work, at least in our Department.
The two other positions would be for Special Long/Range Planning. I hope you give
that a very serious consideration because I think we really need those additional staff.
And some of the other requests. . .for a General Plan update, Profess..., and
Professional Services and replacement vehicle; I hope you give that a very strong
consideration. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Um. . .John, as, tell, tell us why the replacement 4x4 is.. .
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: 10,000.
CHAIR HOKAMA: . . .surplus 10,000? Is, is, is this something your Department wants to do
knowing that. . .efforts through Finance Department and the Mayor's office in trying to
get us compliant with GAS..., GASB-34 and how we gonna value our assets, how we
gonna depreciate? Is this the way you guys want to proceed?
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MR. MIN: Well, we have purchased, over the past couple of years, two Federal surplused
vehicles. One is a regular four-door se..., sedan and the other is a 4x4. And the
vehicles were low mileage, you know, they--from our standpoint--were, you know, a
very good, a very good buy. And, you know, we, again, based upon our experience
with that, feel the, you know, the Federal surplus vehicle route would be the way we
would like to go.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, I know you trying to save us money at the same time. The 4x4 is
required, John?
MR. MIN: It is for our inspectors. All four of our inspectors, three of our, excuse me, three of
our inspectors, have access to a four-wheel drive vehicle and for the areas that they
need to cover, it's important to have that.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Let me just ask a couple questions because I think the Members
brought up some good point. What do you consider long/range planning, John? Ten
plus years a..., ahead? Now, what, what. . .you know, I don't know if everybody has a
different idea of what long/range planning is, that's why.
MR. MIN: Well, in terms of, if we're looking at it in terms of the timeframe for a General Plan or
a Community Plan, we're looking at a horizon of 20 years. Admittedly, we update our
plans, ten..., every ten years but the actually planning horizon is a 20 year horizon. So,
for those programs that would be. . .you know, what we'd be looking at. Our population
forecasts are based on a 20-year forecast. Some of the other projects that we may be
involved in, the timeframes may be shorter, again, depending on the objectives of the,
that project. But, again, for the purposes of general planning and community planning
we're looking at 20 years.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, so the 300,000 you're asking the Committee for
under. . .Professional Services, General Plan Update. Now, that we have the census,
you gonna, is your, your--or tell us how you plan to spend the money? You gonna go
out and contract consultants to use the data to make recommendations to the
Department, then it's gonna be forwarded to Planning Commissions and then it's gonna
be forwarded to Council, is that the process?
MR. MIN: Uh. . .yeah. These, the professional services for the General Plan Update would be
to provide us with technical information relative to infrastructure, public facilities. We
would probably also want to do a land use forecast. . .in order to provide for, you know,
those kinds of projections of, of future needs.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, and they would be reporting to. . .
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MR. MIN: The informa...,-CHAIR HOKAMA: . . .presumably, to that two long/range positions you're requesting?
MR. MIN: Urn. . .yes, it would be an addition. These, these would be consulting services, you
know, in the, the general planning, general plan update program.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, your long/range planning request, your position request, is they, are
they geared for the general plan review and update? That's what their, their, their, one
of their primary responsibilities will be?
MR. MIN: Yes. Yes, that's, that's one of the, you know, primary programs that we'll be
undertaking in the next fis..., fiscal year. And so, the staffing request is, is geared for
that, as well as, other long/range and special planning work as may occur.
CHAIR HOKAMA: How coordinated will your Department be with efforts of the Water Supply?
MR. MIN: We participate in the, in their update of the Water Use And Development Plan. So,
we are involved in providing information or any other assistance in that effort but, but
they are actually directing that project and we participate in it.
CHAIR HOKAMA: So, Water De...,--well, well, I guess maybe that's the right way--Water
dic..., dictates land use. Okay. . . .(Pause). . . Okay, and the 292,500 in your planning
professional services, John, that is totally unrelated to the General Plan Update project?
MR. MIN: That is correct. Those monies would be to support services for Hearing Officers,
Court Reporters, for contested case hearings, as well as, as the update for some of our
design guidelines. For example, Wailuku Town Redevelopment Area, we need to
expand our design guidelines to include the additional areas that have been included in
that redevelopment area.
CHAIR HOKAMA: The fees for, for contested case and what not, this is to supplement those,
those costs, and the fees, doesn't make up the total requirements, John?
MR. MIN: Yes, it is. Urn. . .under State law, agencies cannot recover costs of a contested
case hearing from the parties, that's by State law. Okay, so, by in large, we incur, you
know, most of the costs. We'll pay for the Hearing Officer fees, you know, the Court
Reporter and so forth.
CHAIR HOKAMA: We, we, we ante-up for professional witness. . .expert testimony?
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MR. MIN: No, we, we normally don't do that because. . .that would be, that kind of cost would
be born by the intervenor and the applicant. So, the County or the Planning Department
doesn't pay for any expert witness fees but it's for the Hearing Officer and the
Court Reporter and any other related expenses.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you. Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yes, thank you. From hearing what some of the discussion is
over here, I think, that I'll write a letter to myself to create a. . .an item in the agen..., in
our Planning Committee agenda. I think, what John is not saying is that he needs some
assistance in order to do some of the things we're talking about doing. And if it means
changing the SMA law, if we can, to require residences, single-family residences to
come before, you know, like everybody else in the SMA. I mean, that's something that
we, as a legislative body would need to do. So, perhaps, there's, there's other things,
like if we want to talk about beach access every 1,500 feet, I think, maybe we need to
enact some things to make that a requirement. And I, I don't think this is the place to
talk about that but I'd be happy to create an item in there since I believe the Planning
Department comes under the Planning Committee as far as review.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Why don't we just send, send a letter from this Committee to you,
Charmaine.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Sure. . .that would be great. And, then I think we can get to
some nitty-gritty's and actually find out how we can help the Planning Department to
enforce the things that we want enforced to protect our shorelines and our environment.
We also need to get the Public Works Department in here, if they're also saying, you
know, they're, they're. . .you know, supposed to be commenting about infrastructure.
And if they're not stopping it at that point, that they, you know, we need to have some
coordination here about our concerns and not just, you know, take it all out on John.
My, my question is--after that--who is assigned to CZM. . .planning, now? Because that
was what Daren used to do, right?
MR. MIN: Yes. Currently. . .we, we hired, well, very recently, Matt Niles. Matt, is a candidate,
a Master's candidate at, I believe, Oregon or Oregon State in Marine Environmental
Planning. He worked under Rob Mullane as a. . .student in the Sea Grant program. So,
a lot of the work that Daren did regarding shoreline beach processes, beach erosion,
we're, we're sort of transitioning that work, you know, to, to Matt Niles.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay, my other qu..., I think we met Matt. Didn't he come in
one time with Rob Mullane?
MR. MIN: Could be, could be.
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COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: I think maybe he did.
MR. MIN: And he was featured in the newspaper, the Maui News, for his Master's thesis.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Oh, yeah, right. The other question is, okay, you have from
what I could count out, out, 14 planners, including the Administrators but not including
the Director or the Deputy, is that correct? I just counted it out off the, off the.. .
MR. MIN: Yeah, I believe that's correct.
CHAIR HOKAMA: You counting the interns, too?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: No. . . .(Pause). . . I don't think so.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Planners.. .
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: On 15-2 in the details.
(Long Pause).
CHAIR HOKAMA: What did you count, Charmaine, eleven?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Four..., 14 including the Administrators in the EM classes.
Oh, Michele, maybe you.. .
MS. YOSHIMURA: Mr. Chair, I think there's 13.. .
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Oh, 'cause one's frozen.
MS. YOSHIMURA: . . .excluding one, yeah, there's one frozen position, the Planning
Administrator.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: So, you're not asking for that to be unfrozen?
MR. MIN: Urn. . .well, currently, we were able to, to get Jeff Chang temporarily reassigned to
assist our office and if you know Jeff he worked in the Department a number of years
ago. So, he has come in and is assisting us in the Planning Program Administrator slot.
So, because his, his position is funded through, I believe, it's the Managing Director's
office, we're not requesting that this position be unfrozen at this time.
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COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay. Okay, so then you will have, I mean, 14 is the right
number then, that I'm looking at?
MR. MIN: Thirteen.
MS. YOSHIMURA: Including Jeff.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Oh, 13 plus Jeff is 14?
MR. MIN: Including Jeff would be 14, yes.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay, so if you take out two that you are assigning to the
Long/Range Planning Division and Special Projects-MR. MIN: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: --you're left with 12.
MR. MIN: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: You take out one for the CZM Planner, you're left with 11.
Well, I didn't work the figure out for 11 people but based on your application and
reviews of the year 2000 with that 12,700 so, whatever.. .
MR. MIN: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: . . .at 12 people which is. . .actually one more than I gave you
credit for. . .that is 1,062 applications per planner for that year. Broken further down,
that's 88.5 pla..., plans per month, which equates to 4.4 applications per day.
MR. MIN: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: I don't know if my math is wrong, I think it's right.
MR. MIN: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: But that seems like an awful unbelievable ratio for planners to
have to process or try to process those many plans with the staff that you have.
MR. MIN: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: How do you do this? (Chuckle).
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MR. MIN: Yeah, well, first of all, the total number of applications include your development
applications, your change in zoning applications, as well as, building permits, subdivision review and, you know, a lot of the ministerial permits. Okay. By and large,
most of the permits that we proc..., that we review or process, are ministerial type
permits.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Uh-huh.
MR. MIN: Okay, so when you really look at the number of what I would call major permits,
your change in zoning, your SMA's, that require public hearings, those numbers are a
bit smaller. I would say that our planners, our Staff Planners, in the Planning Division
probably are handling at any one given time. . .25 to 30 applications. Okay, now, these
are in different stages of processing. In our Zoning Administration Division, we have
planners there as well, and a lot of the applications that they review are building permit
applications; sub-division applications; flood hazard district applications; they're, they're,
they're of a different nature. So, in terms of the number, you know, if we did break out
the public hearing items from let's say the non-public hearing items; the major from the
minor, I think, we might have a little different perspective on it. But, to answer your
question for major applications, our Planners, you know, I would say anywhere from,
you know, 20 to maybe 25 applications.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Per year?
MR. MIN: Per da..., on any given time.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Oh, any given time-MR. MIN: At any given time.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: --that that many in the air or something.
MR. MIN: That they're handling and they're in different stages of processing. Some may be,
you know, public hearing three months down the line, some may be just finishing up but,
you know, that's kind of the general workload.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay. Do you have any idea how that compares with other
Planning Departments in the Counties, throughout our Counties?
MR. MIN: You know, in talking to my colleagues, I think, it's pretty comparable.
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COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay. Okay, that's all I have for now, I guess, I'll save my
speeches for the deliberation time. Thank you. Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Mr. Arakawa.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Yeah, I've got a. . .on Page 15-5 of the details. Now, we're,
we're talking about CZM and Daren Suzuki, you're moving him up to a planner position.
Bob Mullane's gone. And if you look in the details for Shoreline Analyst Tech. Assistant
you have zero, Shoreline Management Service you have zero, Coastal Erosion
Management you have zero, in your budget. At the same time, the Mayor is coming in
with buying a barge to move sand around for, for shoreline replenishment. At the same
time, we're picking up a major piece of equipment in order to pick up seaweed. Why,
why don't we have any money being put in for Coastal Management programs of this
kind; who's gonna take that up?
MR. MIN: Okay. Yeah, you know, I, I, that's a slight omission on my part on Page 5...,
15-6. . .and this would be under Marine Resources. It's the bottom of Page 15-5 and
continuing on 15-6. We are requesting $30,000 for. . .support in the area of Marine
Resources.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: And you could you explain that support?
MR. MIN: It would be, essentially, to provide the continuing support that we've had over the
years with the Sea Grant program. We do have, you know, with Matt Niles coming on
board and with his expertise in the area of marine resources management, we have
been able to assume some of that technical capability within our Department. But, you
know, there may be a need, you know, for other studies or other projects related to this
and so that's what this 30,000 is budgeted for.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: You know, just on. . .a gut feeling on this thing. When we're
talking about having no. . .real data on how we're gonna mine sand off the ocean; we
have no data on a lot of the, the area that we're gonna be trying to work on the seaweed
maintenance. I, I can't understand how you plan to do all of that with $30,000. I mean,
you know, that's not even seaweed removal money, at this point. So, how, how are you
gonna get all that information that you need? 'Cause you're asking us to expend
$250,000 on a barge to siphon sand. I, I just don't understand where you gonna get all
this technical information you need and the ability to train people to operate the barge
system. Because we weren't gonna hire anybody, we were just gonna. . .we were just
going to have. . .somehow, we're gonna get other people to run it for us. And we don't
have any other data as far as all of that. Can you explain how you're gonna do that?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Budget Director.
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MS. YOSHIMURA: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Councilman Arakawa, we have the sand barge and
the seaweed removal in Public Works, under Special Maintenance. And the barge,
we're asking for $150,000 and also $100,000 to do the study or to do the operational
part of the barge. There's also an appropriation in here or request in here for $75,000
for the seaweed removal program and $150,000 for the equipment. So, we are asking
for funds for studies, if necessary, and also for the operation aspect of the equipment.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Then, then why aren't those funds in, in this area for doing
the planning for that, if I may ask?
MS. YOSHIMURA: Why is.. .
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Why aren't the funds, you know, we have the shoreline
analysis, shoreline management service, erosion management; this is the area where
that, I think, the, has been in the past, where we've been doing that, all of this study.
Why is it not in here?
MS. YOSHIMURA: Okay. As far as seaweed removal, it's always been in the special
maintenance area.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Okay.
MS. YOSHIMURA: And as far as the. . .sand or the beach nourishment, we had just put it with
the same special maintenance area. And if you wish, you could move it to the Planning
Department. . .um. . .before the budget gets adopted.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Okay. Well, I'm gonna go take a look at that, Mr. Chairman,
because this seems to be the area where it has traditionally been. If they're gonna
move it, that's fine, but we gotta make sure that there's enough money to actually do
those studies. I don't want to go out and buy a, a barge if we don't have the studies
available that we can know, actually know, we're not damaging the ecology. The
shoreline. . .ecosystem, you know, I'm a diver and it's a very fragile ecosystem. So, I
want to make sure that we have enough funding, funds there to make sure we get the
studies done before we get a piece of equipment that could go out and do more
damage than good, and the training for the people that are gonna operate that
equipment. 'Cause if, you know, if you judge the shoreline, if we're taking it off the
outside of the inner reef and we're taking it in channel, you're traversing hundreds of
yards of beach area, of area between the beach and where you'll be mining the sand
from and you may have an impact on all of that area. So, there's gotta be extensive
studies out in this area to make sure we're safe in what we're doing.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: The Chair, the Chair would agree with you, Mr. Arakawa.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: I'm sure the Corps of Engineers from the Feds want to get, will get
involved. I'm sure DLNR from the State will get involved. I'm sure maybe NOA might
get involved.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Involved. Yeah, well.. .
CHAIR HOKAMA: There's a lot of agencies (chuckle) that.. .
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Yeah, I was a little concerned that we're moving
Daren Suzuki out of this area as well. Because it seems that we're gonna have to
concentrate our area, our efforts in this area and we actually need to put more
personnel that have the expertise. And we really have only two people that have
expertise in this area, that I know of within the County system, and I would think that
we'd need to actually try and get more people in this area if we're gonna try and do this
project.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Mr. Carroll.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Thank you, Chair. John, over there on 15-5, developing,
Development Small Town Zoning Services. I don't ever recall seeing that before, was
that ever, was that ever done? Was there ever somebody actually doing it? (Pause)
It's almost on the bottom; second from the bottom.
MR. MIN: Um. . .if I recall, there was a appropriation for this. . .project. It may have been
three, possibly four years ago. It was to develop the small town code, which is currently
being reviewed by the Maui Redevelopment Agency. Okay. So, the consultant work
has been completed, okay, but that's what that item, I believe, reflects.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Okay. No, it's just I never heard of it before.
MR. MIN: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Alright. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Mr. Carroll. Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes. One, one of the things and I'll make a comment or a
suggestion and then I'll ask a question. One of the things that was found on the
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Internet, one of my staff members researched some of the way that organizational
measures have been taken within divisions with regard to growth management. And so,
there is a clear separation of duties so that people don't drift over into the other area.
I'd just like you to consider, perhaps, adopting maybe a Growth Management Division
within, you know, your, your entire. . .area.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: That's something else. We do that.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Oh, you knew that. Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: They do that. (Chuckle).
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Oh well, see, I'm dumb. (Chuckle). But anyway-COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: --so that's already there, they have a Growth Management
Division?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: No.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Oh, oh.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: We can put it in.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Oh, I see what you're saying. Thank you, Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: (Chuckle).
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Anyway, I'm suggesting that. . .for the benefit of everyone.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: We can suggest it.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes, we can suggest. We can try. The, the other thing I
want to find out and, and I haven't, I must admit I, I can't, sometimes, when I'm going
through all the budget detail, I don't know what every specific thing is. Sometimes you
have projects in there but one of the things we've always, and I've been a huge
advocate for, is the baseline study for some type of carrying capacity. So, that we know
that we can genuinely approve something because we really do have the infrastructure
in place. Is there anywhere in this budget that we have funded any of, of those
measures?

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui
March 28, 2001

MR. MIN: Yeah, and that would relate to the 300,000 that we're requesting for the General
Plan update. We are looking at. . .a large portion of those funds for purposes of
updating our, our infrastructure and public facility assessments. Because we do need
that baseline information as well as some idea in terms of future projections, you know,
what the needs will be, you know, in those areas. So, yes, we are taking that into
account.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: And, and alon..., along with that, too, I think, that one of ways
that we might be actually able to accomplish more are by working with the University
with Clyde Sakamoto. And I know some of the individuals, some of the young students
are really working with you, so I would really like to see more collaboration in that area.
So, that a lot of the data entry and the data gathe..., gathering from all different
segments, I know Terryl was here, I don't know if she's here now, but anyway, her Hotel
Association has data. We have the high performance computing center research
library, we have other entities, and it would just be collating that data. So, I hope you'll
consider using our youth more effectively, to including the kids at Lahainaluna. Thank
you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Mr. Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: I'll pass.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Mr. Nishiki.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Pass.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No way.
ALL: (Laughed).
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: We can hope.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: This is one area that I'm really close to. I, I, I-COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: You got one minute.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: --you know, John, I don't know if you've been listening to our
Mayor when he came here and he mentioned about moving the SMA boundary along
Honoapiilani Highway from the pali all the way to Puamana. Because there are new
owners now and he was going to create a new line. Is that been initiated and has that
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communication been spoken to you, and when, if not yet, do you expect that to be
initiated?
MR. MIN: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: And finally, are you going to get the Planning Commission to
move on the shoreline setback rules right away because, what has it been two years
now, for whatever reason, we've not acted on it?
MR. MIN: Uh. . .it's, it's been a year a half.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay, so all of that, you could answer those questions.
MR. MIN: Okay. Okay. In terms of the shoreline setback rules, first of all, we do have a draft
that we presented to the Commission. We hope to get that to them, back to them very
soon and when I say soon, I'm hoping that within the next two to three months. Okay.
But, you know, we do want to do a little bit additional public work before we take it back
to the Commission for a public hearing. In terms of the SMA boundary, I'm gonna need
to discuss that further with the Mayor but we have not yet initiated an expansion of the
boundary in the area that you described.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Is it something, is it something that we can talk about, or is it
something that we're going to do? I, I, I, you know, why? I think a lot of us don't what to
hear anymore talking, I mean, we need, we need to see administering of wherever we
want to go in this County.
MR. MIN: Yeah, I think, at this, at this time, you know, I would, you know, like to be able to
discuss this further with Mayor. And I'm sure I'll be appearing before this Committee
again in the near future and, hopefully, I'll be able to provide a more specific response
at that time.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: I'm done.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Nishiki. Members, we.. .
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: I pass. (Chuckle).
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Reading my mind, huh, Charmaine?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: The rest, I'll send in questions.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. I have one test..., testifier that wishes to present comments this
afternoon. The Chair, at this time, would like to bring her up and. . .Michelle Anderson.
The Chair will allow testimony since you are a. . .we'll elevate you to a Terryl's test,
expert testifier. You know the rules.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: I object.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Please state your name.
. . .BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY.. .
MS. ANDERSON: Who said I object?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Hurry up.
MS. ANDERSON: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Michelle Anderson, Executive Assistant to
Councilmember Wayne Nishiki. I am testifying on my own behalf as a previous Planner
and Environmental Specialist for the Office of Environmental Quality Control. And you
were discussing shoreline access and I just wanted to bring to your attention and to the
Committee's attention that we do have a Shoreline Access Management Plan that was
instigated by the Administration some years ago. It lays out. . .legal accesses that we
already have in the County by TMK number; what kind of access it is, where it is, if it's
sandy, if there's parking, if there's showers and this is a plan that the County is
supposed to be following. In our office, we have, recently, had complaints by people on
the north shore and the west shore, that long standing accesses were closed
by. . .either putting up a gate or blocking it off someway. We found these accesses
were legal accesses in shoreline access plan and so, we wrote to the Administration
and asked them what was the remedy. We gave them a copy of the page in the plan
where it showed that this was a legal access. We were then informed by Public Works,
who by the way, they are the agency who approves subdivisions--subdivisions don't go
in front of the public; they are administrative approval that, generally, one or two people
have the authority to approve and this is done in Public Works Department, Land Use
and Code. They don't have a copy of the shoreline access plan, so how can they
check. This is a really vital part of our County makeup. There's also a Coastal View
Plane plan. In the special management area, we are, we are charged with protecting
the view plane to the ocean from the nearest roadway or highway to the ocean. And as
any of you have been in South Maui, particularly, Kihei and Makena lately, you'll know
that our view plane to the ocean is being obliterated daily by houses that are being built
up. Also, we have in our community plan, a provision that says, nothing along the
coastline should be higher than four feet, as far as, fences. That's being ignored. That
provisions is there partic..., particularly to save our view planes to the ocean. So, back
to the shoreline issue. Chapter 46-6.5, which is Hawaii Revised Statutes, provides for
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public access to our mountains and to our beaches. Every community plan that this
County has ever passed including the General Plan, this one, I happen to have is the
Kihei/Makena Community Plan passed in '98. The plan previous to this also had this
provision, adopt a beach/mountain access dedication ordinance pursuant to Chapter 46
HRS to assist in establishing public mauka and makai accesses in conjunction with an
overall public access master plan to serve as the framework for decision making. It's
imperative that we get this done. This has been on the books since 1973. In fact, the
State's Statutes says that the Counties must adopt these ordinances within May of
1974; we still haven't done it. In our subdivision ordinance there is a provision, in our
specific Chapter 19 subdivision ordinance--or is it 16?--our County code ordinance for
subdivisions. There is a provision for public access to the beaches, it says nothing
about the mountains, but to the beaches every 1,500 feet, but Chapter 46 says nothing
about a limitation of 1,500 feet. So, if the Council wanted to adopt a County ordinance
as we've been charged to do since 1974, to address beach access, specifically, along
shoreline properties that are going to be single-family homes, we could do that. It just
takes the will of the political body. So, I just wanted to point those two things out
because I think that shoreline access is a critical problem right now, not only because
we have undeveloped land that are now being developed. As John said, if it's a
single-family home it is exempt from the SMA review; however, they still have to go
through the shoreline setback review. And that's done, generally, as a minor permit for
some kind of landscaping that the director handles. But, it's critical that we make sure
that we have access to these pristine shoreline areas in Makena before they are all built
up because it, it's all going. There isn't gonna be a single stretch of coastline that is not
gonna be developed all the way to 'Ahihi-Kina'u. So, it's up to this body, I think, as a
Council to make sure that we get that ordinance adopted. And then we also have the
continuing problem of existing accesses being shut down. So, that's my input, my "two
cents." Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, Michelle, so I'm, I'm assuming your tying it into the budget for the
Planning Department and the area of Long/Range Planning and Shoreline Protection?
MS. ANDERSON: Yes, and since you mentioned, maybe the Planning Department could
come up with this ordinance along with the Open Space ordinance. . . .(Pause). . .
That we could, you know. . .
CHAIR HOKAMA: We'll, let Ms. Tavares. . .(chuckle). . .Committee handle all those things.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Actually, it's in Land Use.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Or, or through you, Mr. Arakawa, Land Use, Land use. . .
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Yeah, that's one of the issues that we're talking about.
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MS. ANDERSON: But, you know, in regards to the budget (chuckle) since this is a
Budget Committee. . .every single one of our community plans have implementing
actions and the implementing actions are really what we're supposed to basing our
budget on. These are the plans of the future of this County. They connect to the
General Plan and the General Plan connects to the State plan. And if you look at the
budget ordinance it says, that we are supposed to be adopting or, or budgeting the
implementation of all these implementing actions that are in the community plans. So,
the fact that we have had this one provision about adopting a County ordinance for HRS
Chapter 46 for some 20 years and it's never been done, maybe this Budget Committee
should take that up.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you, Ms. Anderson.
MS. ANDERSON: Thank you, Mr. Chair.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Question.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Arakawa.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Yeah, would it be possible if we could get a copy of that
Coastal Plan that they have? Michelle, if it's possible could you make a copy of that or
have. . .Dave Raatz make a copy.
MS. ANDERSON: We're currently making a plan for the, for David Goode. So-COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Could you make a copy for David Raatz as well?
MS. ANDERSON: --we'll make one for you, too.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Well, if we're gonna introduce it into the Committee and we
gonna be discussing it, I need to have something to work off of and if we don't have that
it will be that much harder. So, with that it will make it a lot easier.
MS. ANDERSON: Sure.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Thank you.
MS. ANDERSON: I would be happy to provide every Council Member with a copy of this
because I think it's a working dynamic document that everyone should have. It should
be updated on an annual basis. Since this plan was adopted back in '90 whenever, 80
something, this was--a lot of work went into this and it came out of Coastal Zone
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Management money. This was coastal zone management money that, that
promulgated this plan. There was a lot of work that went into it and as far as I know, it's
never been updated. And we've had a lot of new accesses, you know, every time
there's a subdivision or a major development on the coastline you get a new access but
I don't see them in this plan. So, this should be a dynamic document that should really
be a bible for everyone because we, you know, the beaches and the access to our
beaches that's the basis of our tourist industry. And, you know, the tourist can have the
tourist beaches but you gotta have some beaches for the residents to go to, too, and
that's why these public accesses are so important.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
MS. ANDERSON: Thank you.
. . .END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY.. .
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, Members-COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: One, one.. .
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, Mr. Arakawa.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Yeah, one last question before we close shop.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Sure.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: I would like to get from the Department an answer to how
are we tying in the budgeting for the Department with the community plans? If we could
get that.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Mr. Min, you clear on the request from Mr. Arakawa? Okay. I
assume you plan to respond in writing?
MR. MIN: Yes.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, Mr. Min, will respond in writing to the Committee regarding
Mr. Arakawa's request. Yes, Mr. Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah, just a request in writing from Mr. Min an update on how
the general plan is coming?
CHAIR HOKAMA: You want the process from start to.. .
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COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah. How are things coming along?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: We'll, put that request in. Okay, Members, thank you very much for your
attention today. We have Paia this evening. . .-- (CHANGE OF TAPE) --. . .at nine
tomorrow morning.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, Mr. Arakawa.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Urn. . .1, I may be a little bit late to the Paia because we have
the Transportation meeting at five and Mike Molina might also be a little bit late. . .he's
going to that.. .
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: --it's, it's the final meeting. So, what's the time you getting
up there?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: We have the.. .(inaudible).. .
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you very much, Members. This meeting is adjourned.
. . .(gavel). . .

ACTION:

DEFER pending further discussion.

ADJOURN: 3:14 p.m.
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